
MEETING AGENDA 
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER (ROOM A108) 
56 CHURCH STREET, MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

AUGUST 12,2019,7:00 P.M. 

1. Consideration: Resolution expressing the City's gratitude to Jamie Gregory for his service on the 
Planning Commission. 

2. Approval of the minutes of the July 22,2019 regular meeting of the City Council. 

3. Consideration: Resolution appointing a member to the Villages Design Review Committee to 
service without compensation through August 23,2019 (filling the unexpired term of Sally 
Legg). 

4. Consideration: Resolution appointing a member to the Villages Design Review Committee to 
serve without compensation through August 12,2022. 

5. Consideration: Resolution appointing poll workers for the September 24,20 19, special election. 

6. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the proposed Cove Drive traffic island improvements and 
City's expenditure for same. 

7. Consideration: Resolution ratifying the execution of a contractor agreement between the City and 
Reno Plumbing & Sewer Services, Inc., with respect to the installation of new water service at the 
Crestline Elementary School field. 

8. Consideration: Ordinance permitting and regulating the sale of [off-premises] alcoholic 
beverages by appropriately licenses businesses on Sunday in the City. 

9. Consideration: Consideration of an ordinance amending the Lane Parke Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) master development plan with respect to drive-throughs. 

10. Announcement: The next regular meeting of the City Council will be August 26,2019, at 7:00 
p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 
35213. 

1 1. Announcement: The City Council shall conduct an open work session concerning the proposed 
budget for the year ending September 30,2020, on August 29,20 19, starting at 8:00 a.m. in the 
Room A 106 of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 352 13. 

12. Comments from residents. 

13. Adjourn. 



R E S O L U T I O N  

WHEREAS, Jamie Gregory has served with distinction on the Mountain Â rook 
Planning Commission from March 9, 2015, through June 24, 2019, having served as 
Secretary beginning in 2012; and 

WHEREAS, Jamie Gregory brought invaluable insight to decisions regarding all 
of Mountain Broolz and its various villages, giving thoughdul deliberation of all issues, 
with steadfast dedication to his community, and being instrumental in establishing a 

legacy of sound city planning for years to come; and 

WHEREAS, While Jamie Gregory always approached each case with an open 
mind, he also possessed the fortitude to malze tough recommendations, when necessary, 
to protect the community and to advance sound planning principles; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the residents of Mountain Brook to express their 
gratitude to Jamie Gregory for his unselfish service and tireless efforts while serving on 
the Planning Commission. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council and Mayor, on 
behalf of the residents of Mountain Brook, do publicly thank Jamie Gregory for his 
exemplary service and wish him well in Lture endeavors. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of August, 2019 

Virginia C. Smith 
Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of August, 2019 

Stewart H. Welch, 111 
Mayor 



Minute Book 90 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-MEETING DISCUSSION 

JULY 22,2019 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the Pre-council 
Room (A106) of City Hall at 6:30 p.m. on the 22nd day of July, 2019. The Council President called the 
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present : Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Philip E. Black 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Stewart Welch 111, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

1. AGENDA 

1 .  August 15th Public Involveinent Meeting from 5-7pm at City Hall for public comments on Old 
Brook Trail and Canterbury Road bridge projects with a 4 p.m. pre-meeting in advance thereof 

2. Resolution No. 20 19- 104, accept the professional services proposal submitted by Rob Walker 
Architects, LLC, with respect to the proposed City Hall mall security improvements project, was 
added to the formal meeting agenda 

3. Review of the other matters to be considered at the formal (7 p.m.) meeting 

2. EXECUTIVE SESSION AND ADJOURNMENT 

There being no fbrther matters for discussion, Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard made a 
motion that the City Council convene in executive session to discuss matters of real estate. The City Attorney 
verbally certified that the subject matter of the executive session is permissible under the Open Meetings Act. 
The motion was seconded by Council President Smith. There being no further discussion, the vote was called 
with the following results: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Philip E. Black 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said motion canied by a vote of 5-0. She then 
announced that the City Council shall reconvene upon conclusion of the executive session at approximately 7 
p.m. in Room A1 08. The pre-meeting was then adjourned at approximately 7:4 1 p.m. 

July 22,2019 



874 Minute Book 90 

3. CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and 
correct synopsis of the discussion from the work session of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama held at City Hall, Pre-Council Room (A 106) on July 22,2019, and that the meeting was duly called 
and held in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and that no 
formal action or votes were conducted at said work session. 

City Clerk 
Approved by City Council August 12,201 9 

July 22,2019 



Minute Book 90 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

JULY 22,2019 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the City Hall 
Council Chamber at approximately 7:00 p.m. on the 22nd day of July, 2019. The Council President called the 
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Philip E. Black 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Stewart Welch 111, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

The Council President stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the 
transaction of business 

1. CONSIDERATION: ORDINANCE (NO. 2050) APPOINTING THE ASSISTANT CITY 
TREASURER (EXHIBIT 1) 

Council President Smith introduced the ordinance in writing. It was then moved by Council member 
Shelton that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would prevent the immediate consideration and 
adoption of said ordinance be suspended and that unanimous consent to the immediate consideration of said 
ordinance be given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be waived. The motion was seconded by 
Council member Black and was unanimously carried, as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith 
William S. ("Billy") Pritchard I11 
Philip E. Black 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith declared the motion carried by a vote of 5-0. 

After said ordinance had been considered in full by the Council member Womack then moved for the 
adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council President Smith. Thereupon, Council 
President Pro Tempore Pritchard called for vote with the following results: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith 
William S. ("Billy") Pritchard 111 
Philip E. Black 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith declared that the ordinance (No. 2050) is hereby adopted by a vote of 5-0 
and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same. 

J:\Minutes & Agendas\Council\20 19\20 190722 Minutes.doc July 22,20 19 



876 Minute Book 90 

2. INAUGURATION OF THE ASSISTANT CITY TREASURER (APPENDIX 1) 

Mayor Welch then administered the oath of office to Leigh Ann A. Sisson who then assumed her role 
as an officer of the City of Mountain Brook. 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 

Council President Smith announced that the following matters will be considered at one time on the 
consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects: 

Approval of the minutes of the July 8,2019, regular meeting of the City Council 

2019-096 Resolution authorizing signatories on the City's Iberia Bank Appendix 2 
checking account(s) 

2019-097 Recommend to the State of Alabama Alcoholic Beverage Exhibit 2, 
Control (ABC) Board the issuance of a 020 - Restaurant Retail Appendix 3 
Liquor license to Carrigans MTB, Inc. (trade name: Carrigans 
Public House), 2400 Montevallo Road, 35223 

2019-098 Award the bid for janitorial services for the Emmet O'Neal Exhibit 3, 
Library (B-20 19040 1-505) Appendix 4 

2019-099 Authorize the execution of a contractor agreement between the Exhibit 4, 
City and Tornado Fence Co., for the installation of a chain link Appendix 5 
fence at the new dog park to be installed at Cahaba River Walk 
Park 

2019-100 Adopt the Birmingham Jefferson County Transit Authority Exhibit 5, 
(MAX) routes for the fiscal year October 1,20 19 through Appendix 6 
September 30,2020 

2019-101 Award the bid for the construction of retaining walls at the Exhibit 6, 
Athletic Complex (C-20 190625-523) Appendix 7 

2019-102 Authorize the execution of a contractor agreement between the Exhibit 7, 
City and TCC, Inc., subject to the receipt of a $40,000 donation, Appendix 8 
with respect to the construction of a pedestrian bridge on 
Watkins Trace Trail in Jemison Park 

2019-103 Award the bid to Metro Mechanical Services, Inc. for scheduled Exhibit 8, 
maintenance services for the City's HVAC and other Appendix 9 
mechanical systems (B-20 1902 10-006) 

2019-104 Accept the professional s e ~ c e s  proposal submitted by Rob Exhibit 9, 
Walker Architects, LLC, with respect to the proposed City Hall Appendix 10 
mall security improvements project 

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes and resolutions were introduced by Council President Smith and a 
motion for their immediate adoption made by Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard. The minutes and 
resolutions were then considered by the City Council. Council member Black seconded the motion to adopt 
the foregoing minutes and resolutions. Then, upon the question being put and the roll called, the vote was 
recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard 111, Council President Pro Tempore 

July 22,20 19 



Minute Book 90 

Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said minutes and resolutions (Nos. 20 19-096 through 
201 9-104) are adopted by a vote of 5-0 and as evidence thereof she signed the same. 

4. ANNOUNCEMENT 

The next regular meeting of the City Council will be August 13,2019, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. 

5. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no hrther business to come before the City Council, Council President Smith adjourned 
the meeting at approximately 7:05 p.m. 

6. CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and 
correct transcript of the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama held at 
City Hall, Council Chamber (Room A108) on July 22,2019, and that the meeting was duly called and held in 
all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and that a quorum was 
present. 

City Clerk 
Approved by City Council August 12,20 19 

EXHIBIT 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2050 

ORDINANCE APPOINTING THE 
ASSISTANT CITY TREASURER OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as follows: 

1. Leigh Ann Sisson is hereby appointed as Assistant City Treasurer of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, to serve without compensation and at the pleasure of the Council or until her successor be duly 
appointed. 

2. The Assistant Treasurer shall furnish a surety company bond in an amount approved by the City 
Council for the faithful performance of her duties in the safe custody of the funds of the City. Such bond shall 
be signed by good and sufficient sureties to be approved by the Mayor. The premium for such bond shall be 
paid by the City from its General Fund. 

APPENDIX 1 

July 22,20 19 



~ ~ r y  or Mountam amoK Mall - rwa: vole rar VVK ~ano~oates 

Mountam Brook I Steve Boone sboones@mtnbrook.org> 

Fwd: Vote for VDR Candidates 
1 message 

Dana Hazen <hazend@mtnbrook.org> Mon, Jul29,2019 at 1:18 PM 
To: Steve Boone <boones@mtnbrook.org> 
Cc: Virginia Smith <wood967@aol.com>, Alice Womack ~alicewomackl4@gmaiI.com~, Sam Gaston 
<gastons@mtnbrook.org> 

W)g m. ; rp@ &m u-&,@*. & t"~W:@:slp &tf.m; 
. . .. , , . ,. 

1st - Katie Wohlwend 
2nd - Ashley Spotswood 
3rd - Katrina Porter 

h m  as m s h p d  If pla'd.ib Sa hdde in, , & G . ~ u I ~ c ~  .paekct, 

Forwarded message ---- 
From: Tammy Reid <r@dt@mtnbrook.org> 
Date: Mon, Jul29, 2019 at 11:29 AM 
Subject: Re: Vote for VDR Candidates 
To: Dana Hazen <hazend@mtnbrook.org> 

Resumes attached. 

On Mon, Jul29,2019 at 11 :27 AM Dana Hazen < h j % ? ~ r i \ ? N b W k . @ ~  wrote: wyW f@& &Qf:&& &&3' & [ me ibGbp& f :,a: 
ipplpd .... . .  @.& . . &dm@ ~ . .  ~ Fyt<p . .. ~ * &!"@ *&'db.. l"h&+: 

On Mon, Jul29, 2019 at 1058 AM Tammy Reid creidt@mtnbrook.org> wrote: I I The results of the vote for ranking of VDR candidates is as follows: 

1st - Katie Wohlwend 
2nd - Ashley Spotswood 
3rd - Katrina Porter 

These results will be considered by the council at their August 12 meeting. 

Thank you, 

- 
Tummy Reid 
Administrative Analyst 



& K W  D E S I G N  

Katie Wohlwend 

C O N T A C T  

407.718.3312 9 

katie akw-des1gn.com rn 
vww.kw-design.com (B 

EDUCATION 
Samford University 

B.S., Graphic Desig~) 

W O R K  E X P E R I E N C E  

KW Oesign (winter 2014 -present) 
Owner & Designer 
Spec~altzlng In brandrny systems anti c ~ ~ s t o ~ i i  g~ap!irc di?s~gn servlces 

Clients tnlclrde Massachusetls Institute of 'Itchnology. I-rlos' Gourmet Popslclos, 
Robins R Morton. US Assure, Hare Wynn Newell & Nev~ton, 
Ronald McDonald I-lOiJSe of JaCksonvl!le. Greater New Orlearls Fotrnclet~on 

IT Rockstars (fall 2011 - winter 2014) 
Lead Graphic Designer 
Print arid web design. responstbllltles tncluded 

Complete creative dfrect~on fron~ logo and nraridirig systenls lo usel 
expuclence des~grl includ~ny ail wet:, creatrvc for cl~ent IrlojecIs 

Clients ~ncluded Express 011 Change. Hooks-A-MIIIIOII, lror~ Tribe Fitness 

Farnihii~rzed wlth ancl p~epared files (or developrnctnt w11hir\ .Nf 7 platforin 

Panorama Public Relations (summer 2010 - fall 2011) 
Creative Director 
P~rnt and web design. respotisibri~Qes ~n~l\rded: 

Braf~dttf nledra coll~~tcral for Oelk. Inc . consartng of medra k ~ t  and r~ircros~te desrgrl 

Medi'i ri~arer~als f u ~  publicly traded, wolld-v~lde colnpany GD Coppel 

Soley rc-sponsrble lor all ~ntelnl hrarlcltllg ~f ior ts ~ncl~rclrng v~2b~rl t l  nrld cllent crc-atlvt. needs 

The Basinger Design Group (spring 2009 - spring 2010) 
Graphic Designer 
Print arrtl wet) clesrgrl responsible for ptojccts dlst~~bttteil natron.#dlclc. 

Cl~erlts ~ncluded Celltr~x Pfiar~nacrut~cals. Royal Cup Coffee and Vdlrrlorrt NeV~UIiirk 

Developed advanced Photoshop lectlnlclucs anrl skllls 

The Samford Crimson (foll 2008 - spring 2010) 
Art Director 
lrlfoyraphics and advertlsiny design. page Iriyoi~t 

T E C H N I C A L  S K I L L S  

Strong workt~lg knov~lecfge rn both Macirltosh anc! PC plalfor~iis. 

Adobe Pholosl~op. InDesiyn. Illt~stralor. Dreamv~eover. Flash. Acrobat. Rr~dge, 

Firev~orks; Microsoft Powerpoinl arld Word. 

Knowledgable and capable r? HTML. CSS, and VJordp~rss. 



Ashley Wiltshire Spotswood 

Professional Srrntnrary 

A native of Pensacola. Florida, Ashley has lived in Birmingham. Alabama 
since 1978. From 1989 through 1999. Ashley was involved in the 
designing and manufacturing of indoor and outdoor metal furniture. In 
2000, she began to devote her time to painting and continuing her art 
education. Ashley was a Board member of Studio by the Tracks for over 
15 years and is active in the Birmingham area community. She is one of 
four partners opening a home furnishings shop in Mountain Brook. 
Alabama in the fall of 2019. 

Work History 

Village Smith, L.P. - Director Of Design 
Chattanooga. TN 
0317992 - 0411999 

One of six founding partners in an indoor metal furniture manufacturing 
business. Assisted the President in implementation of sales and 
marketing plan regarding manufacturing and finishing capabilities to 
potential OEM businesses. The target businesses and eventual customers 
included: Ethan Allen. Drexel Heritage. The Lane Co., Henredon. Kinkaid 
Furniture and Lexington Furniture. Responsibilities included design of 
indoor and outdoor furniture and accessories, sourcing of ornamental 
metal components and development of proprietary metal finishes. 
Assisted VP of Operations and Plant Manager in all phases of factory 
production to insure product quality. 

Fer Forge, Inc. - President 
Birmingham, AL 
0611989 - 0311992 

Co-Founder of a custom indoor metal furniture company. Designed 
product, supervised manufacturing, developed customized finishes and 
assisted in sales and marketing. Responsible for developing a customer 
base, managing staff and overseeing financial operations. Fer Forge 
averaged one million dollars in sales by it's third year of operation. 

awspotswood@mac.com 
(205) 492-5017 
Birmingham, AL 35243 

Skills 

Creating visual art 
Painted finishes 
Project design 
Interior design knowledge 
Networking skills 
Creativity 
Design and manufacturing of metal 
furniture and accessories 

Education 

1979 
University of Alabama At Birmingham 
Birmingham, AL 
Bachelor of Arts: Painting 



Katrina Huston Porter 

3340 Eaton Road I Mountain Brook, Alabama 35223 1 (205) 335-1901 
p I www.katrinaporterdesigns.com 

Interior Designer I Owner 
2007 -Present 

Katrina Porter Designs, LLC 
9 Office Park Circle, Suite 217, Mountain Brook, AL 35223 

Specialize in Kitchen and Bathroom renovation design. 
Create floor plans and elevations using AutoCAD. 
Navigate the homeowner through the design and construction phases of their projects. 
Assist in product selection and specification for the following items but not limited to: appliances, plumbing 
fixtures, tile and stone, etc. 
Advise on whole house renovation and new construction projects. 

Create Scopes of Work - defining the project for the contractors to bid. 

Community Carpentry Interior Designer I Builder Support 
Homewood. Alabama 2005 - 2007 

8 Liaison between the homeowner and the builder. 
Assisted the homeowner with interior and exterior finish selections on new construction and renovation projects. 
Created floor plans and elevations used in house as well as for subcontractors to use during the bidding process. 
Assisted the project estimator in collecting and compiling quotes. 
Worked with subcontractors during construction: electrical walkthroughs, discussed tile layouts with tile setters, answered 
questions related to cabinet construcbon. 
Gathered appliance specifications. 

Martin Advertising Receptionist to Account Billing Services 
Birmingham, Alabama 2003 -2005 

Answered a 13 line phone system. Seems so foreign a concept today! 
Managed sign in I sign out sheet for 50-80 employees 
Created Purchase Orders and Invoices for Voice Over talent 

Rutt Custom Cabinetry Cabinet Designer I Showroom Designer 
Goodville. Pennsylvania (Lancaster County) 1998 - 2000 

Learned AutoCAD. Crash course!! Boss told me to throw away my pencils! 
Designed showroom displays for both Flagship showrooms and privately owned showrooms nationwide. 
Assisted showroom designers with cabinet drawings and order placement. 
Assisted National Sales Representatives with warranty claims. 
Created bids for Custom 1 Special Order products. 

Sassnett Cabinet Company 
Birmingham. Alabama 

Responsible for both presentation and shop drawings for a custom cabinet company. 
Selected finishes for kitchen and bathroom renovations. 
Hand painted and glazed cabinets. 
Presented designs to clients. 

Design South 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

Assisted the owner with daily business operations: Invoicing. Accounts Payable, etc 
Drew (by hand) floor plans and elevations for client presentations. 
Compiled finish specifications for clients and builders. 

Cablnet Designer 
1997 - 1998 

Design Assistant 
1996 - 1997 

Auburn University Housing and Interiors Degree -Human Science Department Spring 1996 

Community Involvement 
Serve on the Mountain Brook Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors 
President Elect for the Alabama Women In Business 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-108 

WHEREAS, a special municipal election has been called to be held on the 24th day of 
September 24,2019, and a runoff election to be held, if necessary, on the 5th day of November, 2019, and 

WHEREAS, Section 11-46-27 of the Alabama Code of 1975, as amended, provides, in part, that 
the municipal governing body shall appoint from the qualified electors, officers to conduct the election as 
follows: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, that the election officers for said election shall be as follows: 

Polling Location No. 1 - St. Luke's Episcopal Church 
William L. Irons Chief 3855 Cove Drive 35213 
Lois J. Poe 385 1 South Cove Drive 
Kimberly H. Carney 12 Montrose Circle 
Diane M. Fisher 3829 Cove Drive 35213 

879-6988 bill irons@hohnailsom 
871-6286 
871-1100 
879-801 1 

Marguerite Costanzo 
John Costanzo 

307 Momingside Circle 35213 
307 Morningside Circle 35213 

Diane E. 3917 Montevallo Road 35213 
Weatherford 

Polling Location No. 2 - Mountain Brook City Hall 
Stephanie Byrne Chief 605 Dexter Avenue 35213 907-8362 sbvme@realtvsauth.com 
Sue Moore Abele 3767 Jackson Blvd 3521 3 
James T Cobb, Jr. 121 Crestview Drive 35213 
Judy H. Pittman 4301 Cross Keys Road 35213 
Ma jorie E. Breman 3774 Montevallo Rd S 35213 871-5541 
Herbert S. Reese 37 Montcrest Drive 35213 
Mayree Veona 3904 Montevallo S Rd 35213 

Hembree King 
Patricia P Pugh 4 162 Appomattox Lane 3521 3 
Katherine McDavid 122 Crestview Drive 35213 

Allen 
Carolme Massey 123 Greenbriar Lane 352 13 

Daniel 
Laura Ann Stacy 2716 Soutbview Ter, 35216 
Naomi Cunningham 3621 Country Club Rd 35213 
Absentee Ballot Counters - Mountain Brook City Hall 
Steven Boone Chief 3721 Forest Run Road 35223 937-5662 
Janet Forbes 
Suzan Doidge 
Caroline Boone 
Polling Location No. 3 - Brookwood Baptist Church 
Ronald B. Cohen Chief 3267 Hillard Drive 35243 969-2340 avieron@bellsouth.net 
Kathryn H. Horton Asst 3270 Hillard Drive 35243 
Amy J. Allon 3825 Briar Oak Drive 35243 
Awin 0. Cohen 3267 Hillard Drive 35243 
Bert A. Siege1 3532 Spring Valley Ct 35243 
Phillip L. Teninbaum 3201 Stoningham Drive 35243 
Eva L. Wilensky 3340 Stoneridge Lane 35243 
Polling Location No. 4 - Mountaii Brook Community Church 
Helen M. Martin Chief 2933 Green Valley Rd 35243 967-5627 helen&sai.net 
William F Martin 111 2933 Green Valley Rd 35243 612-3649 



Martha L. Phillippi 3344 Eaton Road 35223-2835 967-0889 
Joseph W. Spransy 4000 Hunters Land, 35243 967-4601 
Evan R. Roberts 4414 Briar Glen Circle, 35243 913-3143 
Carole C. Pitard 3327 Woodridge Road, 35223 968-6670 
Mildred C. Chapman 3701 Charleston Lane, 35216 988-3058 
Lima B. Lee 4432 Cahaba River Rd, 35243 903-7874 
Lois Caldwell 2744 Dunbarton Road, 35223 613-0606 
Scot Cardwell 3364 Fankg Road, 35223 223-2990 
Polling Location No. 5 - Canterbury United Methodist Church 
Camille S. Butrus Chief 2724 Old Mill Lane 35223 803-4197 camillebutrus@?anail.com 
Martha Green Isom Asst 2000 Moms Avenue 290-5797 marth~sisom(ii.email.com 
Mary Catherine 1612 Cahaba Road 35223 960-7222 

Crowe 
Glenda E. Nagrodzki 607 Euclid Avenue 35213 835-1898 
Pamela T. Morad 7401 Elliott Lane 35094 540-2949 
Polling Location No. 6 - Cherokee Bend Elementary School 
Russell B. Tyler Chief 999-8202 trusselll 0369@am.omail.com 
Elizabeth Compton 4320 Corinth Drive 35213 
Tiffany Young 
Jayda Marble 
Tracey Marble 
Nakki Battle 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that the City Clerk, Chief inspectors, andlor Assistant Chief Inspectors/Clerks are hereby authorized to 
engage replacement poll workers in the event persons appointed herein above fail to rep&t for duty for 
any reason; and, 

BE IT  FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to pay the following amounts to those persons 
appointed herein above, or any replacement poll workers engaged by thechief inspectors or Assistant 
Chief Inspectors/Clerks: 

Chief Inspectors $225 
Assistant Chief Inspectors/Clerks $175 
Absentee Clerks $ 45 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that the City Clerk is hereby authorized and to provide rekeshments on election day and at the poll 
worker training and to pay an additional $25 to all poll workers who attend the poll workers' training 
program to be held at Mountain Brook City Hall (council chambers), 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, 
Alabama 35213, on dates yet to be determined, fiom 5:30 p.m. until 7:00 p.m. or otherwise complete such 
training at another location or by other means. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of August, 2019. 

APPROVED: This 12th day of August, 2019. 

Council President 

Mayor 



CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its meeting held on August 12,20 19, as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting. 

City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-109 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby authorizes City Manager to pay, or cause to be paid for and on behalf of the City, up to 
$3,000 for materials and provide City labor and equipment to install beautification improvements at the 
Cove Drive traffic island as illustrated in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of August, 20 19. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of August, 20 1 9. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at its 
regular meeting held on August 12,20 19, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Cove Drive Traffic Island Beautification 



Traffic Island Policy Worksheet 

Island Location- Cove Drive 

Area of Island 10,504 Max City Contribution $3.000 

(< 3,000 sq !I = $1,000; 3,000-6,000 sq tl= $2,000; > 6,000 sq tl= $3,000) 

Sketch of Design 

Dark Green - keep 2 existing trees 
Light Green - up to 6 new trees 
Red X- removing 5 treeslshmbs 
GrayrBlack- stone patio 

Other Details 

We will go ahead and remove the undesirable trees and build the patio after council 

approval. The new trees will be planted this fall at the appropriate time of year. Public 

Works will help fix the curbs on the ends where the asphalt cut throughs are located. 

Materials Ouantitv Cost 

Oak Trees 5-6 $1,500 

Stone patio $1,500 

Total Cost $3,000 



Traffic Island Policy Worksheet 

Resident Contact Information 

Name 

Jessica Thuston 

Email 

jsthuston@gmail.com 

Partnership Agreement 

The City will install the patio, plant the trees, and maintain it as part of our usual 

duties. 

Island Committee Comments Date July 30.201 9 

Helen Drennen and I met with Jessica and several other residents and discussed what 

they would like to see done. I then presented the plan to the remainder of the 

committee through email and everyone was in agreement. 

Tree Commission Members: Ro Holman and Elizabeth Poynor 

Park Board Members: Helen Drennen and Aimee Reese 

Police Department Comments Date: August 8.201 9 

LT. Jason Carmack stated by email that he did not see any issues with the plan. 

Council Comments: Date: August 1 2.20 1 9 

Amount approved: 

Construction Issues/Comments/Adjustments 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-110 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
the City Council hereby ratifies the execution of a contractor agreement between the City and 
Reno Plumbing & Sewer Service, Inc., in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A subject to such 
minor revisions recommended by legal counsel, with respect to the water line tap and installation 
to serve Crestline Elementary field. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of August, 2019. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of August, 20 19. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on August 12,2019, as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Reno Plumbing Crestline Water Line Contractor Agreement 2019-110 



CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

Reno Plumbing & Sewer Service, Inc. ("Contractor") enters this Contractor 
Agreement ("Agreement") with the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, a municipal 
corporation ("bCity"), effective as of the date last executed by a party below (the 
"Effective Date"). Contractor and City may be individually referenced herein as "Party" 
or collectively as "Parties." 

1. Project. Unless otherwise stated on the attached Exhibit A - Specifications 
(which is incorporated by reference), Contractor, at its expense, will furnish all the labor, 
materials, supplies, supervision, and equipment needed to perform the work, services and 
operations (collectively, the "Work") on the understated project (the Project") 

Name of Project: Tap and Install New Water Service 

Site of Project: Crestline Elementary Field 
(near) 3 Elm Street 
Mountain Brook, AL 3 52 1 3 

2. Scope of Work. See Exhibit A (which includes the City Scope of Work and 
July 24,2019 Contractor Proposal, hereinafter the "Contractor Proposal") that is attached 
and incorporated herein. 

3. Undertaking of Parties. Contractor agrees to perform the Work in 
accordance with the terms, conditions and specification in this Agreement and on Exhibit 
A. City agrees to compensate Contractor and perform its other responsibilities set forth 
in the Contract Documents. 

4. TermITermination. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the 
Effective Date and thereafter continue in effect for three (3) months (the "Term"). The 
period in which Contractor will complete the Project is set forth on Exhibit A. 

Notwithstanding the provision immediately above or any other language herein, 
City may terminate this Agreement before the expiration of its Term at the time 
designated in a written notice to Contractor if each of the following have occurred: (a) 
Contractor has defaulted on a material obligation to the City hereunder (a "Default"); and 
(b) following the City's provision of written notice of Default to Contractor, the 
Contractor fails to correct or remedy that Default within fifteen (15) days after receipt of 
that notice. The failure of the Contractor to timely perform the Work shall be considered 
an event of Default. This remedy is in addition to any other provided in the Agreement 
or available to City under law or in equity. 

Contractor's obligations herein shall survive the termination or expiration of the 
Term for these periods: Section 6(f) (Warranty on workmanship and materials) for one 
year following Project acceptance; other warranties in Section 6 for a period of one year, 
and Section 7(c) (Indemnification) for a period of two (2) years. 



5. Contract Price/Invoice/Certification. Unless otherwise stated in the Special 
Conditions on Exhibit A or agreed in a writing signed by the parties, City will pay 
Contractor the lump sum amount of Ninety-six hundred dollars ($9,600.00) as 
compensation for performing the Work (the "Contract Price"). Unless agreed in a writing 
signed by duly authorized representatives of both parties, the total amount payable to the 
Contractor for the Work shall not exceed the Contract Price (and agreed sum(s) payable 
for any Additional Operations contemplated on Exhibit A). In no event will the total 
amount paid to Contractor for its Work (including the Contract Price or any amount paid 
for Additional Operations) exceed $50.000.00. 

The City will pay the Contract Price on this Project following certification of 
completion of Work. 

Within ten (10) days following the successful completion of the Project, 
Contractor will submit to City Project Representative an invoice for the Contract Price 
(as adjusted by any mutually agreed change orders signed by both parties). With such 
invoice Contractor shall submit records reasonably supporting its payment. Within five 
(5) days following receipt of that invoice, City Project Representative will review same, 
consult with Contractor and make any mutually agreed modifications to it, certify that the 
invoice is due to be paid, and forward that certified invoice to the City Clerk. The City 
Clerk will remit to the Contractor the amount certified for payment within twenty (20) 
days after it receives that certification. 

6. Warranties of Contractor. The Contractor warrants each of the following 
with respect to its Work: 

(a) that it expeditiously will perform its Work in a good and workmanlike 
manner that is consistent with level of skill and care that would be 
provided by other contractors performing operations under the same or 
similar conditions, and in accordance with the Project schedule; 

(b) that it, and all of its employees or any subcontractors (if authorized), 
will complete the Work in compliance with all codes, laws and 
regulations that are applicable to the Project; 

(c) that before commencing the Work, at its own expense, the Contractor 
will obtain all licenses, permits or other governmental authorizations 
needed to complete the Project, including without limitation, a 
business license and building permit issued by the City (collectively, 
"Licensing"). Contractor further agrees to maintain that Licensing 
throughout the performance of the Project; 

(d) that it has inspected the Site and any other locations at which it will 
perform the Work, and, based on that inspection and its expertise, that 



it has determined that each of those locations is reasonably suitable for 
Contractor to complete the Work; 

(e) that the Contractor shall be responsible to remove and properly dispose 
of any debris related to its completion of the Project, and that it will 
leave each location where the Work is performed in reasonably clean 
condition; 

(0 that the Work will be free of any material defects in workmanship and 
materials for a period of one (1) year that shall commence on the date 
of acceptance of the Project; and 

(g) that all actions required to be taken by or on behalf of the Contractor to 
enter or execute this Agreement, and to perform its obligations and 
agreements hereunder, have been duly taken, and the person signing 
below on behalf of Contractor is authorized to execute this Agreement. 

(a) Insurance. For the duration of this Agreement and for limits not less than 
stated below, Contractor, at its sole expense, shall maintain the following insurance with 
a company(ies) lawfully authorized to do business in Alabama and reasonably acceptable 
to City: 

(i) Comprehensive General Liability: Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand 
Dollars ($750,000.00), combined single limit and aggregate for bodily 
injury and property damage. This Comprehensive General Liability policy 
shall include coverage for premises/operations, products/completed 
operations, assumed contractual obligations, independent contractors, and 
broad form property damage; 

(ii) Automobile Liability: Automobile Liability covering owned and 
rented vehicles operated with policy limits of not less than Seven Hundred 
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($750,000.00) combined single limit and 
aggregate for bodily injury and property damage; 

(iii) Workers Compensation/Employer's Liability: Workers' 
Compensation as required by statute and Employer's Liability with limits 
of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) per occurrence. 

The Contractor may satisfy its insurance obligations hereunder through a combination of 
primary, umbrella and excess policies. Before the execution of this Agreement, the 
Contractor shall provide City a certificate(s) of insurance evidencing compliance with the 
requirements in this section. The certificate shall name City as an additional insured on 
the Comprehensive General Liability, Automobile Liability, and any applicable umbrella 
and excess policies. 



The City will not hrnish any type, form, coverage or amount of insurance in 
connection with the Project. 

(b). Safety. Contractor agrees that it (a) has the sole responsibility to identify any 
condition or hazard at the Site or other locations on City property that will prevent it fiom 
safely performing the Work, and (b) is exclusively responsible for performing the Work 
in a safe manner that does not put at risk the safety of persons or endanger property. 
Contractor shall take all reasonable precautions for the safety of, and shall provide all 
reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to: (i) its employees and all other 
persons who may be affected by the Work; (ii) all the Work and all materials and equipment 
to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the Site, or under the care, custody or 
control of the Contractor or any of its representatives; and (iii) other property at the Work 
Site or adjacent thereto. 

(c). Indemnification. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
City and its agents, employees and officials (hereinafter collectively, the "Indemnitee~'~) 
fiom and against all demands, actions, liabilities, expenses (including reasonable 
attorney's fees) or claims for damages by any third parties (including any employee, 
subcontractor or representative of the Contractor, hereafter a "Contractor Representative") 
that arise out of, relate to or are caused by any negligent act, omission or conduct by 
Contractor or any Contractor Representative in performing or failing to perform the Work 
or its (or their) responsibilities under this Agreement; provided that nothing herein shall 
obligate the Contractor to indemnify any of the Indemnitees for any claims resulting from 
the negligent conduct or the willfbl misconduct of the Indemnitees. 

The City will not indemnify Contractor (or nay of its representatives or authorized 
subcontractors) for any claims that relate to or arise out of the Project. 

(d). Limitation of Liability. In no event may Contractor recover from the City 
any special, incidental, consequential or any other indirect damages whatsoever of any 
description (including, without limitation, damages for lost profits, lost advantage, lost 
opportunity, loss of savings or revenues or for increased cost of operations) or amount 
arising from the City's breach of its obligations hereunder. 

8. Project Representative. Each Party shall appoint and indicate on Exhibit A its 
representative who shall coordinate with the other Party on all matters related to the 
performance of the Work and the administration of this Agreement (the "Project 
Representative"). Any notice required hereunder shall be sufficiently given when sent to 
the appropriate Project Representative via United States certified mail, return receipt 
requested, or via overnight courier with receipt verification to the address set forth herein, 
or by personally delivering such notice to the party to be in receipt thereof 

9. Miscellaneous Provisions. 



a. This Agreement which is comprised of this instrument, the City Scope of Work 
and the July 24,2019 Contractor Proposal (collectively, the "Contract Documents") sets 
forth the entire understanding between the Parties concerning the matters herein, and all 
oral representations, prior negotiations, understandings, agreements, conditions, and 
terms discussed between them prior to acceptance and signing of this Agreement are 
deemed to have merged herein. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between 
provisions in the various Contract Documents, the provision(s) in the document in the 
order below shall control and take precedence: (1) this Agreement; (2) the City Scope of 
Work; and (3) the Contractor Proposal. 

b. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts each of which when executed 
by the Parties shall be deemed to be a complete original. An electronic or facsimile copy 
of the executed contract or counterpart shall be deemed, and shall have the same legal 
force and effect as, an original document. 

c. Any forbearance or delay on the part of City in enforcing any of its rights under 
this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of such rights. No terms of this 
Agreement shall be waived unless expressly waived in writing. 

d. Contractor may not assign its rights, obligations or the benefits of this 
Agreement to any third party without the written consent of City, which consent may be 
withheld for any reason. 

e. This Agreement is made only for the benefit of the Parties. It is not intended, 
nor shall it be construed, to grant or bestow any benefit, right or privilege to any third 
Party. 

E Contractor is an independent contractor of City. This Agreement does not 
create any partnership, joint venture or principal-agent relationship between the Parties. 
Further, City retains no control or authority with respect to its means and methods in 
which Contractor (or any of its employees or representatives) performs the Work. 

h. Immigration Law Compliance. Contractor represents and warrants to the City 
that: (i) it does not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ, in 
Alabama, an "unauthorized alien," as defined by the Beason-Hammon Alabama 
Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, $3 1-1 3-1, et seq., Code of Alabama 1975, as 
amended (the b'Act"); (ii) it will enroll in the E-Verify program prior to performing any 
work on the Project in Alabama and shall provide documentation establishing that it is 
enrolled in the E-Verify program. During the performance of this Agreement, the 
Contractor shall participate in the E-Verify program as required under the terms of the 
Act and shall verify every employee in Alabama that is required to be verified according 
to the applicable federal rules and regulations; (iii) it will comply with all applicable 
provisions of the Act with respect to subcontractors, if any, that it engages on the Project 
by entering into an agreement with or by obtaining an affidavit from such subcontractors 
providing work on the Project in Alabama that such subcontractors are in compliance 
with the Act with respect to their participation in the E-verify program. Contractor 



further represents and warrants that it shall not hire, retain or contract with any 
subcontractor to work on the Project in Alabama which it knows is not in compliance 
with the Act; and (iv) by signing this Agreement, it affirms, for the duration of the 
Agreement, that it will not violate federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for 
employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. 
Furthermore, if Contractor is found to be in violation of this provision, it shall be deemed 
in breach of the Agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting therefrom. 

i. Amendment. Neither this Agreement nor any of the provisions herein 
(including, without limitation, those concerning the Scope, Project Schedule and Contract 
Price) may be amended or modified except in accordance with the terms of a written 
instrument (or change order) signed by both Parties. 

j. Delayed Perfonnance/Force Maieure Events. Neither Party shall be liable to the 
other for any failure to perform its respective obligations (including payment obligations) 
under this Agreement during any period in which its performance is delayed by 
circumstances beyond its reasonable control, such as fire, flood, war, embargo, strike, 
riot, or the intervention of any governmental authority (a "Force Majeure Event"). 
However, the delayed Party must promptly provide the other with written notice of the 
Force Majeure Event, the delayed Party's time for performance will be excused only for 
the duration of that Event, and, if that Event lasts longer than 30 days, then the other 
Party may immediately terminate, in whole or in part, this Agreement by giving written 
notice to the delayed Party. 

k. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the 
laws of the State of Alabama. 

(Signature Page Follows) 



Whereas, the undersigned, duly authorized representatives of the Parties execute 
this Agreement on behalf of their respective organization on the date@) shown below. 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

By: - 

Its: Mayor 

Date: 

RENO PLUMBING & SEWER SERVICE, INC. 

By: - 

Its: 

Date: 



EXHIBIT A - SPECIFICATIONS 

1. Scope of Work 

See attached City Scope of Work and July 24,2019 Contractor Proposal. 

If Contractor desires or is required to perform services on the Project that fall outside the 
Scope ("Additional Operations"), the Contractor shall advise the City Project 
Representative of the need for Additional Operations before undertaking those services, 
the parties shall reach agreement on the expense of any Additional Operations and the 
City Project Representative shall approve any such Additional Operations before the 
Contractor performs same. No compensation for Additional Operations will be paid 
unless those Operations are approved in advance. 

2. Proiect Schedule. Weather permitting, Contractor expects to complete the Work 
within an approximate 2 week period after execution of the Agreement and the City 
provides it a Notice to Proceed. 

3. Project Representatives. 

City Project Representative: 
S handa Williams 
3698 Bethune Drive 
Birmingham, AL 35223 
Email: williamssh@mtnbrook.org 
Day Tel #: 205-802-3879 

Contractor Project Representative: 
Brett Reno 
1 1 128 Mize Road 
Remlap, AL 35133 
Email: bwreno85@gmail.com 
Day Tel #: 205-841-0985 

4. Special Conditions. 



City of Mountain Brook Mail - New Water Service quote 

City of Shanda Williams <williamssh@mtnbrook.org> 

New Water Service quote 

Shanda Williams <williamssh@mtnbrook.org> 
To: Brett Reno cbwreno85@gmail.com> 

Fri, Jul 12. 2019 at 9:16 AM 

We will be adding a restroom onto the existing concession stand building a t  Crestline Elementary later this summer. The 
address is 3785 Jackson Blvd. 
We would like to go ahead and get a new water service installed and ready for construction. 

Can you give me a quote to connect to the water line off of Elm Street, everything you need to do concerning an new 
meter, and run the line (1" PVC) approximately 136 ft from the curb to the corner of the existing concrete slab? 
I believe the water main is in the middle of the street. 811 should locate it by Tuesday 7/16. 
I will need you to cover the water line up, but we can repair the asphalt. I would prefer to not cut the sidewalk if you are 
able to bore under it. 
We would like for it to end in a box with cut off valve and hose bib and be easy for the construction company to tie onto 
later. 
We will need to pull a permit, but there will not be any fees since it is a city project. 

I will be glad to meet with you out there next week if you want. 

Thanks, 

- 
Shanda Williams 
Parks & Recreation Superintendent 
City of Mountain Brook 
3698 Bethune D r i v e  
Mountain Brook, AL 35223 
T-205-802-3879 
F-205-967-6522 
www.mtnbrook.org 





ORDINANCE NO. 2051 

AN ORDINANCE PERMITTING AND REGULATING THE SALE OF 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES ON SUNDAY IN THE CITY 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama as 
follows: 

Section 1. Sunday alcohol sales. 

Amendment. Pursuant to the provisions of $28-3A-25 of the Code of Alabama (1975), as 
amended by Alabama Act 201 9-1 00, it shall be lawfid for businesses licensed to sell alcoholic 
beverages for on-premises consumption, off-premises consumption or both on and off premises 
consumption, to commence such sales starting at 10 a.m. on Sundays (formerly noon). 

Penalty. Any violation of this ordinance shall be a misdemeanor punishable by a fine or 
imprisonment to be determined at the discretion of the court or judge as provided in $28-3A-25 
of the Code of Alabama (1975), as amended. 

Section 2. Repealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the 
City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that are inconsistent with the provisions of 
this ordinance are hereby expressly repealed. 

Section 3. Severability. If  any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be 
held unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate 
or impair the remainder of this ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect 
notwithstanding such holding. 

Section 4. Effective Date. This section shall become effective immediately upon 
adoption and publication as provided by law. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of August, 2019. 

-- - 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of August, 201 9. 

Mayor 



CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook,, Alabama, hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama at its meeting held on August 12,20 19, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on August 13,201 9, 
at the following public places, which copies remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Clerk 



ACT #2019- I00 
HB168 

197284-3 

By Representative Ingram 

RFD: Economic Development and Tourism 

F i r s t  Read: 19-MAR-19 

Page 0 



ENROLLED, An A c t ,  

Relating to Sunday sales of alcoholic beverages; 

amend Section 28-3A-25 of the Code of Alabama 1975, as last 

amended by Act 2018-513, 2018 Regular Session, to authorize 

the county commission of a wet county, by resolution or 

referendum, to permit and regulate the sale of alcoholic 

beverages on Sunday by retail licensees of the Alcoholic 

Beverage Control Board; and to authorize the governing body of 

a wet municipality, by ordinance or referendum, to permit and 

regulate the sale of alcoholic beverages during certain hours 

on Sunday by retail licensees of the Alcoholic Beverage 

Control Board. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF ALABAMA: 

Section 1. Section 28-3A-25 of the Code of Alabama 

1975, as last amended by Act 2018-513, 2018 Regular Session, 

is amended to read as follows: 

"928-3A-25. 

"(a) It shall be unlawful: 

"(1) For any manufacturer, importer, or wholesaler, 

or the servants, agents, or employees of the same, to sell, 

trade, or barter in alcoholic beverages between the hours of 

nine o'clock p.m. of any Saturday and two o'clock a.m. of the 

following Monday, except as provided in Section 28-3A-6(h)(l). 

Page 1 



It (2) For any wholesaler or the servants, agents, or 

employees of the wholesaler to sell alcoholic beverages, to 

other than wholesale or retail licensees or others within this 

state lawfully authorized to sell alcoholic beverages, or to 

sell for export. 

" (3) For any person, licensee, or the board either 

directly or by the servants, agents, or employees of the same, 

or for any servant, agent, or employee of the same, to sell, 

deliver, f u r n i s h ,  or give away alcoholic beverages to any 

person under the legal drinking age, as defined in Sect ion 

28-1-5, or t o  permit any person under the legal drinking age, 

as def ined  i n  Section 28-1-5, to drink, consume, or possess 

any alcoholic beverages on any licensee's premises. 

"(4) For any person to consume alcoholic beverages 

on the premises of any s t a t e  liquor store or any off-premises 

licensee, or to allow alcoholic beverages to be consumed on 

the premises of any state l iquor store or any off-premises 

licensee, except as specifically allowed by law for the 

t a s t i n g  of alcoholic beverages. 

"(5) For any licensee t o  fail to keep for a period 

of a t  least three years,. complete and truthful records 

covering the operation of his or her license and particularly 

showing the date of all purchases of alcoholic beverages, the 

actual price paid therefor, and the name of the vendor, or to 

refuse the board or any authorized employee of the board 

Page 2 



access t o  t h e  records or the opportunity to make copies of the 

records when the request is made during business hours. 

" ( 6 )  For any licensee or the  servants ,  agents, or 

employees of t h e  same to refuse the board, any of its 

authorized employees, or any duly comrnissioned law enforcement 

officer the right to completely inspect t h e  entire licensed 

premises at any time the premises are open for business. 

"(7) For any person to knowingly sell  any a l coho l i c  

beverages to any person engaged in the business of illegally 

selling alcoholic beverages. 

"(8) For any person to  manufacture, transport, or 

import alcoholic beverages i n t o  this state, except in 

accordance with the reasonable ru le s  and regulations of the 

board. This subdivision s h a l l  not prohibit the  transportation 

of alcoholic beverages through the state or any dry county so 

long as the beverages are not for delivery therein, i f  the 

transportation is done i n  accordance with the reasonable rules 

and regulations of the board. 

" ( 9 )  For any person to f o r t i f y ,  adulterate, 

contaminate, or in any manner change the character or purity 

of alcoholic beverages from that as originally marketed by the 

manufacturer, except that a retail licensee on order from a 

customer may mix a chaser or other ingredients necessary t o  

prepare a cocktail or mixed drink for on-premises consumption. 

Page 3 



l f ( l O )  For any person licensed t o  sell alcoholic 

beverages to offer t o  give any thing of value as a premium f o r  

the r e t u r n  of caps, stoppers, corks, stamps, or labels taken 

from any b o t t l e ,  case, barrel, or package conta in ing  the 

alcoholic beverages, or to offer to give any thing of value as 

a premium or present to induce the purchase of the alcoholic 

beverages, or for any other purpose whatsoever in connection 

with the sale of the alcoholic beverages, This subdivision 

shall not apply to the return of any moneys specifically 

deposited for the re turn  of the  original containers to the 

owners of the containers. 

"(11) For any licensee or transporter for hire, 

servant, agent, or employee of the same, to transport any 

alcoholic beverages except in the original c o n t a i n e r ,  and for 

any t ransporter  f o r  hire to  transport any alcoholic beverages 

within the state, unless the transporter holds a permit issued 

by the board. 

'I (12) For any manufacturer, importer, or wholesaler, 

servant, agent, or employee of the same, to deliver any 

alcoholic beverages, except in vehicles bearing such 

information on each side of the veh ic l e  as  required by the 

board. 

"(13) For any person to sell alcoholic beverages 

within any dry county or county where the electors have voted 

Page 4 



against the sales, except in wet municipalities or as 

authorized by Section 28-3A-18. 

"(14) For any person, firm, corporation, 

partnership, or association of persons as the terms are 

defined in Section 28-3-1, including any civic center 

authority, racing cornmission, fair authority, airport 

authority, public or quasi-public board, agency, or 

commission, any agent thereof, or otherwise, who or which has 

not been properly licensed under the appropriate provisions of . 

this chapter to sell, offer for sale, or have in possession 

for sale, any alcoholic beverages. Any alcoholic beverages so 

possessed, maintained, or kept shall be contraband and subject 

to condemnation and confiscation as provided by law. 

(15) For any manufacturer, distiller, producer, 

importer, or distributor of alcoholic beverages to employ and 

maintain any person, who is not a full-time bona fide 

employee, as a resident sales agent, broker, or other like 

representative, for the purpose of promoting a sale, purchase, 

or acquisition of alcoholic beverages to or by the state or 

the board, or for any person who is not a full-time bona fide 

employee to act  as an agent, broker, or representative of any 

manufacturer, distributor, producer, importer, or distiller 

for that purpose. 

'' ( 1 6 )  For any person to  sell, give away, or 

otherwise dispose of taxable alcoholic beverages within this 

Page 5 



state on which the required taxes have not been paid as 

required by law. 

" (17) For any wholesaler or retailer, or the 

servant, agent, or employee of the same, to sell, distribute, 

deliver, or to receive or store for sale or distribution 

within this state any alcoholic beverages unless there f i rs t  

has been issued by t h e  board a manufacture'r's license to the 

manufacturer of the alcoholic beverages or its designated 

representative or an importer l i cense  t o  the  importer of the 

alcoholic beverages. 

"(18) For any person under the legal drinking age, 

as defined in Section 28-1-5, to attempt to purchase, to 

purchase, consume, possess, or to transport any alcoholic 

beverages within the state; provided, however, it shall not be 

unlawful f o r  a person under the legal drinking age, as defined 

in Section 28-1-5, t o  be an employee of a wholesale licensee 

or an off-premises retail licensee of the board to  handle, 

transport, or sell any beer or table wine if the person under 

the legal drinking age is acting within the line and scope of 

his or her employment while so acting. There must be an adult 

licensee, servant, agent, or employee of the same present at 

all times a licensed establishment is open for business. 

"(19) For any person, except where authorized by a 

local act or general act of local application or pursuant to 

Section 2 of this act, to buy, give away, sell, or serve f o r  

Page 6 



consumption on or off the premises, or to drink or consume any 

alcoholic beverages in any cafe, lunchroom, restaurant, hotel 

dining room, or other public place on Sunday after the hour of 

two o'clock a.m. 

"(20) Except where authorized by a local act or 

general act of local application or pursuant to Section 2 of 

this act ,  for the proprietor, keeper, or operator of any cafe, 

lunchroom, restaurant, hotel dining room, or other public 

place to knowingly permit any person to give away, sel l ,  or  

serve f o r  consumption on or of f  the premises, o r  to drink or 

consume any a lcoho l i c  beverages on t h e  premises of the cafe, 

lunchroom, restaurant, hotel dining room, or other public 

place on Sunday after  the hour of two o'clock a.m. 

"(21) For a person under the age of 21 years to 

knowingly use or attempt to use a false, forged, deceptive, or 

otherwise nongenuine driver's license to obtain or attempt to 

obtain alcoholic beverages within this state. 

(b) (1) Any violation of subdivisions (1) through 

(17) of subsection (a) shall be a misdemeanor punishable by a 

fine of not less than one hundred dollars ($100) nor more than 

one thousand dollars ($1,000), to which, at the discretion of 

the court or judge trying t h e  case, may be added imprisonment 

in the county jail or at hard labor for the county for not 

more than six months for the first conviction; and, on the 

second conviction of a violation of the subdivisions, the 

Page 7 



offense shall, in addition to the aforementioned fine, be 

punishable by imprisonment or at hard labor for t h e  county for 

not less than three months nor more than six months to be 

imposed by the court or judge trying the case; and, on the 

third conviction and every subsequent conviction of a 

violation of the subdivisions, the offense shall, in addition 

to a fine within the limits abovenamed, be punishable by 

imprisonment or at hard labor for the county for not less than 

six months nor more than 12 months. 

"(2) Any violation of any provision of subdivisions 

(181, (19), ( Z O ) ,  and (21) of subsection (a) shall be a 

sisdemeanor punishable by a fine of not less than fifty 

dollars ($50) nor more than five hundred dollars ($500) ,  to 

which, at the discretion of  the court or judge trying the 

case, may be added imprisonment in the county jail or at hard 

labor for the county for not more than three months. 

"(c) In addition to the penalties otherwise provided 

for a violation of subdivisions (18) and (21) of subsection 

(a), upon conviction, including convictions in juvenile court 

or under the Youthful Offender Act, the offender's license to 

operate a motor vehicle in this state shall be surrendered by 

the offender to the judge adjudicating the case for a period 

of not less than three  months nor more than s i x  months. The 

judge shall forward a copy of the order suspending the license 

Page 8 



to the Alabama State Law Enforcement Agency for enforcement 

purposes. 

Sect ion 2. L f a i r  (a) (1) Subject to subdivision (21, 

in any wet county, the county commission, by resolution, may - 
permit and regulate the sale of alcoholic beverages on Sunday 

after  the hour of two o'clock a.m., for on-premises or 

off-premises consumption, or both, as determined by the county 

commission or as specified in the referendum, if applicable, 

by retail licensees of the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board. 

(2) The county commission of any wet county, by 

resolution, may require a referendum to be held  to determine 

whether Sunday sales of alcohol shall be permitted in the 

county. Upon passase of a resolution by the county comission, 

the countv shall hold the referendum and if a majority of the 

voters votinq thereon vote in favor of the question, then the 

sale of alcoholic beveraqes shall be permitted and resulated 

as specified in the referendum. 

3-- (b) (1) Subject to subdivision (2), in any wet 

municipality, the local governing body or as specified in the 

referendum, if applicable, by ordinance, may permit and 

regulate the sale of alcoholic beverages on Sunday after the 

hour of two o'clock a.m., for on-premises or off-premises 

consumption, or both, as determined by the local governing 

body, by retail licensees of the Alcoholic Beverage Control 

Board. 

Page 9 



(2) The qoverninq body of any wet municipality, by 

ordinance, may require a referendum to  be held to determine 

whether Sunday sales of alcohol shall be permitted in the 

municipalitv. Upon Passase of a resolution bv the qoverninq 

body, the municipality shall hold the referendum and if a 

majority of the voters votinq thereon vote in favor of the 

question, then the sale of alcoholic beveraqes shall be 

permitted and requlated as specified in the referendum. 

Section 3. This act shall become effective on t h e  

first day of the third month following its passage and 

approval by the Governor, or its otherwise becoming law. 

Page 10 



Senate 

Speaker of the House of Representatives 

/ 
-- 

Pres iden t  and Presiding Officer of the Senate 

House of Representatives 
I hereby ce r t i fy  that the w i t h i n  A c t  originated in 

and was passed by the House 04-APR-19, as amended. 

Jeff Woodard 
Clerk 

Passed 

Fllabama Secretary O f  State  

R c t  NU#.. . . : 2019-100 
B i l l  Nus.. . : H-168 

Page 11 



L;{-<L, Y-, 

PONSORS 

HOUSE ACTION 

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE 
RESOLUTION AS REQUIRED IN 
SECTION C OF ACT NO. 81-889 
WAS ADOPTED AND IS AlTACHED 
TO THE BILL, H.B. \be 

I YEAS (n'J NAYS -4.X 1 
I JEFF WOODARD, Clerk I 

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE 
NOTICE & PROOF IS AITACHED 
TO THE BILL, H. B. 
AS REQUIRED IN THE GENERAL 
ACTS OF ALABAMA, 1975 ACT NO. 
91 9. 

JEFF WOODARD, Clerk 

- # -; '. 
SENATE ACTION 

RD 1 RFD 
' I  

i 
1 I 

! 

This Bill was referred to the Standing 
Committee of the Senate on .- , 

I ( : - Ul--. ; -5 1 Y-l 
and was acted upon by such Committee in 
session and is by order of the Committee 
returned therefrom with a favorable r e m  
w/amend(s) 'L'. wlsub by a vote of 

yeas '1 nays L' abstain C? 

DATE: L,, 20- 

RF I 

" i RD 2 CAL 

I 

RE-REFERRED RE-COMM ITTED 

I hereby certify that the Resolution as 
required in Section C of Act No. 81-889 
was adopted and is attached to the Bill, 
HB 2. I 

-> 

YEAS I NAYS . ...:j 

PATRICK HARRIS, 
Secretary 



ORDINANCE NO, 2052 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LANE PARKE PUD 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as follows: 

1. Development Standards. The Master Development Plan and the materials submitted by the applicant, as 
required by Section 129-265 of the Mountain Brook City Code, as approved upon the adoption of Ordinance 187 1 
dated May 21,2012 are hereby amended to include the changes specified as attached hereto. 

2 Description of Affected Pro~ertv. The property that is the subject of the rezoning approved by this 
ordinance is described as follows: 

A parcel of land being situated in the Northeast quarter of the Northwest quarter and the 
Southeast quarter of the Northwest quarter of Section 8, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, more 
particularly described as follows: 

Begin at the Southwest Comer of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 8, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West; being the Point of Beginning; thence run Northerly along the 
West line of said Quarter - Quarter a distance of 665.12 feet; thence right 91'-08'-04" a distance 
of 1325.1 1 feet; thence right 88'-58'-55" a distance of 74.22 feet; thence right 37'-49'-05" a 
distance of 736.41 feet; thence right 52'-46'-30" a distance of 62.37 feet; thence right 00'-14'-22" 
a distance of 179.92 feet; thence left 90'-58'-32" a distance of 355.39 feet; thence right 88'-43'- 
29" a distance of 24.53 feet; thence left 87'-29'-3 5" a distance of 139.13 feet; thence right 89'- 
27'-49" a distance of 14.61 feet; thence left 1 17'-30'-00" a distance of 175.92 feet; thence right 
84'-32'47" a distance of 46.85 feet; thence tangent to a curve to the left having a radius of 
1243.26 feet and a central angle of 9'-20'-05" along the curve an arc distance of 202.55 feet; 
thence right 62'-49'42" from the tangent of said curve a distance of 329.33 feet; thence tangent 
to a curve to the left having a central angle of 18'-00'-50" and a radius of 66.12 feet an arc 
distance of 20.79 feet; thence left 2'-03'-01" to the tangent of a curve to the left having a central 
angle of 34'-34'-36" and a radius of 60.77 feet, an arc distance of 36.67 feet; thence continue 
from the tangent of said curve a distance of 45.64 feet; thence right 90'-00'-00" a distance of 
1 19.49 feet; thence right 33'-25'-36" a distance of 245.1 1 feet; thence right 0'-00'-42" a distance 
of 377.82 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

Said Parcel contains 27.59 acres more or less. 

3. Repealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama that are inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby expressly 
repealed. 

4. Severability. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or invalid 
for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the remainder of this ordinance, which 
shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 
publication as provided by law. 

[Signature page follows] 



ORDINANCE NO. 2052 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LANE PARKE PUD-CONTINUED 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of August, 201 9. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of August, 201 9. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook,, Alabama, hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama at its meeting held on August 12,20 19, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on August 13,201 9, 
at the following public places, which copies remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Clerk 



u r y  or Mounraln urooK Mall - r v v :  r-'lY-Lu 

Steve Boone cboones@mtnbrook.org> 

FW: P-19-20 
1 message 

Sam Gaston cgastons@mtnbrook.org> Fri. Aug 9,2019 at 7:33 AM 
To: VIRGINIA C SMITH ~wood967@icloud.com~, Billy Pritchard <BillyP@pm-j.com>, stewart@welchgroup.com, Lloyd 
Shelton cIw@borlandcpa.com>, Phil Black cPhil@bgrouparch.com> 
Cc: Steve Boone <boones@mtnbrook.org> 

FYI. 

Sam S.Gaston 

City Manager 

City of Mountain Brook, AL. 

56 Church Street 

P.O. Box 130009 

Mountain Brook AL. 35213 

(205) 802-3803 Phone 

(205) 870-3577 Fax 

From: Patrick Darby [mailto:pdarbybhm@gmail.com] 
Sent: Thursday, August 08,2019 9:55 PM 
To: gastons@mtnbrook.org 
Cc: wcolvin@bishop~olvin.com; alice.womack@oakworthcapital.com; carolinedarby@aol.com 
Subject: P-19-20 

Sam, I have spoken in order to Whit Colvin, Lloyd Shelton and Alice Womack about the application to amend the Lane 
Park PUD, currently scheduled for a vote by the City Council on Monday, August 12. They suggested I put my concerns 
in writing for you to circulate to the full City Council and include in the record of the City Council meeting. Please include 
this email in the information packet considered by the Councilors. 

I have reviewed the application, the traffic study attached to the application in support of the amendment, and the minutes 
of the Planning Commission meeting that passed the amendment for consideration by the City Council. 

Although I have several concerns about the application, I will confine my comments to the inadequacy of the traffic study, 
which in my view is a sufficient basis for denying the application. 

I bring these flaws to the attention of the City Council because the minutes of the Planning Commission do not reflect any 
discussion of various substantive weaknesses in the traffic study. 



UIYILU-I Y LIIY or ~wounra~n t r r o o ~  M ~ I I  - t v v :  r - . I  Y-LW 

As I understand the PUD, the proposed uses are not authorized unless supported by a traffic study. The traffic study 
does not support the suggested uses; therefore the amendment should fail. 

Without limitation, the traffic study has the following flaws on its face: 

1 The study does not provide a methodology or information regarding the size of its data set or its 
applicability to the current project. The projections are conclusory and are not supported by relevant evidence or 
a recognized analytical approach. The entire study is couched in the passive ~oice-~'the data ... can be 
statistically analyzed to yield the following:" "it is projected that the queue would exceed the storage;" etc.-with 
no explanation of how "statistical analysis" results in the conclusion offered or who, what, how or by what 
standard or methodology the projection or conclusion was formed. I could look at the same data and form a 
different projection or conclusion that would be just as valid. 

2. Although the language is not clear, the traffic study seems to assume that one drive through will be a coffee 
shop and one drive through will be a fast-casual restaurant, but does not explain why it assumes these uses for 
purposes of the study. The proposed amendment does not appear to be limited to those uses. Obviously, the 
study provides no support whatsoever for any use other than a coffee shop or a fast-casual restaurant and 
therefore, on its face, does not support any other use. Nor are the terms defined. 

3. The study provides no information regarding suitability of the locations that serve as comparables. The 
study seems to concede that locations in Kansas and Minnesota are not valid comparables, but assumes 
locations in Trussville and on Montclair Road are valid. The Council has no information to test this assumption, 
including, without limitation, whether the volume of traffic at these locations is similar, or whether the street 
configurations are similar. The layout of Mountain Brook Village is unique, and the traffic congestion is unusually 
acute. There is no basis to assume the queue lengths at coffee stores or restaurants in Trussville or on Montclair 
Road provide useful information about how queues will form in Lane Park or will affect traffic in the streets. I am 
not familiar with the Trussville location, but clearly the traffic patterns in Mountain Brook Village are far more 
complicated and more stressed than the traffic on Montclair Road. I see no basis to assume the comparables 
are valid. 

4. The study does not present any basis for the statistical significance of the data it relies on, including, 
without limitation, the methodology for defining scope. The charts are labeled "Weekday" at particular 
timeframes, but do not disclose how many days were tested, or how many days would be required for a 
statistically sound sample. A reasonable inference is that the study relies on one day of data at each location. If 
so, one day of data is insufficient for any sort of statistical analysis. Even if multiple days are included, the 
Council lacks relevant information on how those days were selected, whether the sample includes holidays, 
school days, vacation days, and incorporates other variables such as seasonality and weather 

5. The study does not explain why it relies on two coffee shops and one fast-casual restaurant for its data. 
Appraisers usually rely on three comparables at least to compare real estate prices (and go to great lengths to 
identify and explain methodology and why each comparable is similar to the subject property). A more useful 
amount of data is readily available by surveying several locations rather than one or two. The study does not 
explain why these locations were selected, why more locations were not selected, and whether data from other 
locations was considered. According to the minutes, the Planning Commission did not ask any questions about 
these factors, or whether the author of the study collected data from other locations that it omitted from the report, 
and if so why. 

6. Even with these flaws, the study concludes that we should expect traffic disruption from the drive throughs 
at various points in the day for three to six minutes. There is no explanation or methodology described for 



applying the data at other locations to reach such precise conclusions for this location. The study characterizes 
these disruptions as "minor" but provides no basis for that assessment and no scale to explain what "minor" 
disruptions would entail or the effect that they would have. 

7. The study concludes, "It is projected that the drive-through for the Fast-Casual Restaurant 
would never impact traffic flow on Culver Road" (emphasis added). Such a projection is patently suspect and 
without basis. It establishes only that the projection does not assume reasonable and foreseeable mishaps and 
bottlenecks that would cause cars to back up did to a delay service at the restaurant or a spike in customer 
traffic. Reasonably foreseeable events are myriad and include such common occurrences as an accident, 
equipment failure, or staff shortage at the restaurant, a stalled car at the drive through window, or any of a variety 
of common events that would increase customer traffic to levels high above the mean. It is not possible to say 
things like this "never" happen, because things like this always happen, sooner or later. In fact, they are more 
common that not. Although any one of the examples may never happen, some one thing of similar effect is 
bound to happen. This is a fundamental principle of probability and statistical modeling that the study ignores. 
The most study tells us is that nothing like this happened at the one fast casual restaurant they sampled at the 
particular time they happened to look. There is not an adequate basis for the Council to rely on the projection. In 
addition, there is no analysis of what would happen to traffic if an unusually long queue happens to form and 
does affect traffic on Culver Road. To be clear, I do not suggest the Council should preclude all zoning decisions 
on the grounds that unpredictable things happen. Rather, I am pointing out that an unstated assumption that 
unpredictable things never happen undermines the credibility of this study. 

8. The last two points suggest the most salient failure of this study-it says nothing about the traffic in the 
subject location. There is no analysis of current traffic patterns and congestion in Mt. Brook Village. The study 
concludes there will from time to time be six minute delays, but is silent on what the effect will be. Traffic delays 
compound as cars back up. Six minutes for the first car in the jam translates into ten minutes for the car at the 
back of the jam. It is reasonable to assume six minute delays will affect cars at significant distances as they try to 
clear traffic signals and turn into traffic. A useful traffic study would consider what happens when one of these 
jams form, which the study concedes is inevitable. The Council has no information on what that actually means 
to people trying to get through the Village on their way downtown or to MBE when one of these six minute delays 
occur. Anyone who has driven through the Village since this project started reasonably will conclude that a six 
minute delay on Culver Road could create gridlock that will rapidly expand through the crowded and crooked 
streets of the Village, back up into the adjacent neighborhood, cause people to miss lights, complicate turns. 
Ordinary observation makes evident that traffic jams expand and take a very long time to clear at the margins. A 
traffic study should focus on how that will work before the Council votes to change this project, or to change the 
streets with different striping or expansion. The report provides no relevant analysis. 

9. The Planning Commission noted that disruptions are most likely to occur at 7:15 (per above, there is no 
basis for this conclusion), which is before most businesses open. The fact that most businesses open later is 
less important than the fact that 7:15 is well within the morning rush hour, when people are trying to get to work 
downtown, and very close to the time when cars come through to get their kids to school. That is more relevant 
than whether businesses are open. 

10. The fact of delays should be the starting point for such a study, not the end point. Given that the applicant 
stipulates there will be delays, the key question is what effect these delays will have on traffic congestion, which 
is already a very big problem. So far as I can tell, the Council has no information before it on this point, which is 
the essential point. 

11. The study is silent on the effect of drive throughs on pedestrian traffic. The appeal of the Village to 
pedestrians is one of its strongest features. I am not aware that we've previously had drive throughs in the 30 
years I have lived near the Village. The area presently enjoys heavy use by young families with small children, 
unsupervised schoolchildren, the elderly, and people with dogs. We are entitled to presume drive throughs will 
affect that environment negatively. Drive throughs are inherently antagonistic to pedestrians because they 
encourage drivers to idle and stay in their cars rather than park their cars and become pedestrians. Nobody 
wants to dodge cars lined up for fast food while trying to walk a dog and a baby stroller down the sidewalk. Such 
a significant zoning change deserves close scrutiny and should place a high burden of proof on the applicant. 

httnc.llmail nnnnlo rnmlmaill~ t l f l 9 i l r = f l l  G R 7 1 1  r lalR~tinur=ntRcn~r~h~aI IRnnrmthir l=thrnafLAlGAl ?Q9G9FI?dr i~77Q7A0L7Pmcn~fo/~1AIGAl  ?07G78?AEi ?Id 



In sum, the study is pro forma. It is not evidence of anything. The Council is not a court of law and the rules of evidence 
do not apply, but they are a helpful tool to determine the probative value of the study. I urge the Council not to approve 
further traffic disruption and congestion based on this study. The application stipulates there will be traffic disruption but 
provides no analysis of the effect. This issue deserves adequate study and analysis before we further complicate the 
traffic situation in this critical area of the City. 

Thank you. 

Patrick Darby 

31 1 5 Overhill Road 

Cc: Whit Colvin, Alice Womack (I do not have Lloyd's email address) 

Sent from my iPad 

ht tnc - l lma i l  n n n o l n  r n m l m a i l k  11(13ilr=fll c i A 7 l l  rCa 1 R~rio~~~=ntRcoarrh=aIIRn~rmthid~thr~arl~fo/~~dl (id1 1Q7G7R?dL;L;7707A0/~7Pmcn~P~1A I G A I  307G3R?AL; AlA 



Planning Commission Application 
PART I 

Proi ec t Data 

~ddress  ofSubjectProperty ZuSS C U U  PA& a, 9 0 0 J f ~ i ~ n  Ln, 
~ C M ~ J Q ~  L 4  

Zoning Classification LA M.e Pk t / ~  P U D 

Name of Property Owner(s) W S D ~ ,  /neb s , &f41.  

PhoneNumber 2 6  q l p O  4425 Ernail ' \ O ~ ~ E W L / S D ~ ~ ; Y ) C -  

Name of Representative Agent (if applicable) 

Phone Number Email 

Name of Engineer or Surveyor 3 eFF & , 6 D od mi 111 Y-- Cd@o0d/ Ih 

Property owner or representative agent must be present at hearing 

Plans 

[&) See applicable Section of the Zoning Ordinance for submittal requirements 

pertaining to your particular application. Applicable Code Section may be found 

in Part 11, list of application types. Contact City Planner with any specific 

questions as to required plans submittal. 



P-I 9-20 

LANE PARKE 
Mountain Brook Villaae 

PUD AMENDMENT APPLICATION 

The Project Owner previously submitted an application for the rezoning of the 
Property from Local Business District and Residence D District to a Planned Unit 
Development District in accordance with Article XVI of the City Code. which application 
was, following public hearings, approved by the City Council upon the adoption of 
Ordinance 1871 dated May 21, 2012 (as amended from time to time, the 'Approved 
PUD"). All capitalized terms not oUlewise defined herein shall have the meanings 
given to them in the Approved PUD. 

The current owners of the Property subject to the Approved PUD are hereby 
submitting an application to the Planning Commission and the City Council (the aPUD 
Amendment Application") for the approval of certain amendments to the Approved PUD, 
which will provide an alternate Drhre Through and Access Plan for Parcel 5 in the 
Approved PUD. Specifically, the ownen request that the Approved PUD be amended 
by replacing the Table of Contents and pages t6 and 97 and of the Approved PUD with 
the changed pages, and by adding a new Appendix G to the Approved PUD, each as 
set forth in Exhibit 'An attached hereto. The names and addresses of all property 
owners whose property lies within 500 feet of Parcel 5 of the Property, as certified by 
Stewart Tit0 Guaranty Company, are listed on Exhibit '0" attached hereto. 

Accordingly, the owners hereby submit the information included herein to the City 
pursuant to the application requirements of Article XVI of the City Code in order to 
amend the Approved PUD. 



Petition Summary 
Request for approval of an amendment to the Planned Unit Development (PUD) for Lane 
Parke. 

An aLysis 
The proposed PUD amendment has 3 prongs: 

1. To amend the Traffic & Access Plan to allow alternate drive-thru locations 
(especially adding one to Block 8). 

2. To amend the Base Zoning Standards to allow 4 drive-thrus instead of 3. 

Planning Commission Recommendation 
At its meeting of July 1,2019, the planning commission recommended approval of the 
proposed drive-thru amendment (P- 19-20), with a condition that the language be 
tightened up with regard to specific proposed tenant types and specific locations within 
Lane Parke. Language has been added to require a traffic/que analysis and city council 
approval for each and every proposed drive-thru in the project; every time a new tenant 
drive-thru is proposed in future. 

Traffic Study of Drive-Through Queue 

Proposed Coffee Shop (Block 10) 
The proposed drive-thru lane that is to access a coffee shop (Block 10) has the capacity to 
store nine vehicles. At the bottom of Page 5 (Skipper Queue Study), based on a Skipper 
study of a Starbucks in Trussville, it is anticipated that the queue for the proposed coffee 
shop would exceed the nine-queue storage available for 6 minutes per day, as follows: 

The queue will exceed storage by one vehicle for three (3) minutes 
The queue will exceed storage by two vehicles for one (1) minute 
The queue will exceed storage by three vehicles for one (1) minute 
The queue will exceed storage by four vehicles for one (1) minute 

If the queue exceeds the nine car available queue storage, vehicles will interfere with the 
flow of traffic on Jemison Lane. 

Proposed Fast Casual Restaurant (Block 8) 
The proposed drive-thru lane that is to access a fast-casual restaurant (Block 8) has the 
capacity to store two vehicles. Charts on Pages 5 and 6 of the Skipper Queue Study 
indicate frequent excesses of the 2-car queue storage limit throughout the day (between 
4-6 cars in the queue). At the bottom of Page 6, the study indicates that no queue is 
expected to impede traffic on Culver Road. 

However, if the queue exceeds the two car available queue storage, vehicles will interfere 
with the use of on-site parking (behind the Ray & Poynor building) and it would seem 



that there is at least some unknown risk a queue could impede traffic flow on Culver 
Road. 

Affected Regulation 
Article XVI, Planned Unit Development District; Section 129-266, Additional 
Requirements and Provisions 

Appends 
LOCATION: 2655 Lane Parke Road 

ZONING DISTRICT: Planned Unit Development 

OWNER: Evson, Inc. 





M O U N T A I N  BROOK. A L A R A h , l A  

TABLE O F  C O N T E X T S  

I'IJD Knoning Applimrion 

DefincdTcm &Sire Legen 

Senrmenr of Dcvelapmcnt Objariva 

Muter D d o p m l s  Plr 

Permirtcd b n d  Ur 

I'c,mitml I>cnrit 

Design Standenis & Pnrrmn Bo 

Landrqing, Rrh and OpenSpaw Pl i  

hrking. Acuu andliilfic Plr 

Uriliriu and Scorm Dmbge Pi 

Drvclopmet~r Schedulc m d  Conrtruciion Phuing 

Plvn ofStabdiviriun, Ownership, Mainrmanc. md Rutrinive Covcnartrr 

Si, Address and 'Tax krccl ldetuilicariac Number 

Surveywirlr Eievnrionr & Acnsl Phorograph 

Nmcr & Addnscr oIAdjaining h o p q  Own 

A Appendix A; Parking Stud 

6.  Appendix 8:TralficSm 

D. Appouli. Di Etdargcd Uiuarnrivc Muter Plan 

F. Appendix F: I~nlConmxcrcid U a h  Sidewalk and Lighting Pla 

. .. =. ~ . . . . . - - 



Rl:Ol I K I i l )  1 ~ ~ 1  \\'ll>Ill r; h i l h l ~ l t ' \ \  J-LU' 1 ~ S I 1 l  I! 

F~cr-Smnding 

k r c ~ r - l : r c ~ n ~  

Ru\identi.~l 

Rr.ritlcn~i.~l 

Exception, ~ x r m i ~ r i h l c  with rcsp-ct ro rcn~nrr occupying . I I;, rr r~~mr~roc lz~e rlrc ~nlt~ircrrrenta ot'largr 1cn3nts III the Lnnc 
i n  cxcc~s uFJ.OOO square fcer o f  space rhar rcquirc single 

h r k c  Plan. 

Nor applic..llilc to drive ;tides aatl access ~ o i l l r s  to :111y 

\rrucrured pnrki~r!: 

NCII Appliablc S t n v ~  wall I~I c o w  65-lUlY'is o f  A I~PI 

J~I~III crrtrv 1 

STKEEl' \fS.\l.l. 

(10' width 

25 wid111 

(10' widrh; 100' depth 

'li~ ;lllow Tor cHicicr~t vcIriu11.lr rra\el and convcnicnt ac~xss to 

parking \vi l I l i~ l  rlrc Lane I'arkc l'lan. 
' l i t  all41\~ f i ~ r  grclrcr \pacing Iwtwccn huildingi. and rn prnvidc a 

wntcr cc~trrt~ard fnr 1l1c a~ltl~rictn o f  qrwn \pace and amenities. 

I.,\(.:\I>I: ~'KL)IIC.~ILISS 

C ...,. C....r(;n.. 
IDJ~ uil~dosvs and ItalconL-3 rnav r\rcnd 1111 10 5' ~IIIII 111.1~ \ \ i r~d~tvs  and I~JICIIII~TZ tilay rxrcnd I I~ ro 3' nscr rltcI.li) ~IIIIW 1i11 IIII)IC \-A~IJI~OII 011 htli ldingj thrr pn-rcnv r 11gI1t . ...-+,........ 
Ithc hcrdc. hut mav nor cxtcnd owr  frunr huildinr: I~ac. Ifiwnt I~uildinr: line. 1 SIICCI cdqr. 

I'.\KKI\(;. VI:IIIC-!-I. .$\I) PI:III:S.SRI.\~ ;\(.cI:ss S r f \ s l ~ . \ K l ~ s  

NIII 1\11plir~I11c 

I.anc I'arkc will Iw di\.idcd inru Parcell a, iderlriticd on ['age 

3 ttf I'UI) A~~IICXIIU~. l h c  Design Standard, and 

Illu\lrativc. hfasrcr PIJII C~IIICIII~I.IIC building\ and srrtrcr~~rc\ 

Iwiag(~rir.r~tcd will1 rclpcct ru \uch I'arccl\, MJ niini~nunr lot 

\vidtli\ and depth\ .II~ trot ncica\.trr: 

I'arking 

Qtlanriry 

Ik ls i l -5 p r  1,tH)u. 5 c n . i ~ - 5  1x1 I,(HHk Office-4 1x1 

ItMHk Relidenrial-2 p r  ii\velling unir plur visiror \113ccr 

I 'ark~r~g 

I k \ i g ~ r  

I'ark~ng dr\igrt C)r tbr. Rcridcntirl Use Alca tr.111 II~ 
i ~ t t p l ~ n c t u r d  i n  tcn l~da~t rc  with tile Palkrng, hcccr, 

and Trrflic Plan incltldcd i n  Sccliun 13 o f  thi\ P U I I  

~pplic.~tion, wlrich doc\ nor fi>rtiid p~rkirrg i n  h ~ n t  or 

\tdc y.1rd5 

I'arking quanrir). and access \ \ i l l  h e  implerncn~cd i n  

pccllr,lancc willl Ilarkillg, Accr,, d.lhfhe I'lrlr 

inclutletf i n  Secri(~n 1 nftlris I'UD applicariatrr 

Parking for all rriidcn~ial 11sc.r 'hall bc Iq~c.~rcd in the 

IVJI c~f any tc\ idrnr~r l  hti~lding. and nu patkin): \Ira11 II~ 
~)crrnirrcd i n  ray i t t~nr  y ~ d  or bide yard: allu\va~~cc LII 

vihilor lurking i n  t i ~ ~ n r  oT~t1y building if'lclc~rcd 011 - 
arrw and av~i lal~lc h r  yulilic use 

'Ihi\ uill allow l i ~ r  rtrultiplc. yet smaller and more dizcrccr. 

parking ticlcli at111 1, necessary lo pn~vitlc a cenrcr cot~rryard l i ~ r  

rhc rdclirirln ol'grccrr rp.lcc and amcnit~e\. 'Ihc Incation ctfthe 

I~~ i t l cnr i : t l  Iltriltliclg\ prvay frlim the con~mcrcial core nf Lrnc 

I?lrkc ;111d ~ l r c  Village ~rritigarer tlrc rctrhcric impacts o f  parking 

Parking quaririric~ 1rii11rp41ratc .hard IIW rducriun~. a\ 1I1cwr.d 

hy rhc \'illage Overlay Srandard9. 

Vthiclr Acce\s 

I.itnrtation> 

i > r ~ ~ c - r l r r ~ ~ u g l i  

I:aciltric> 

'lhc T)r.~tgn Srrndrrd\ comply \sir11 the spirit o f  tlrc l ' i l lag 

Uvcrlry Srrntiards hut 3pc i f i i  rrreet, i n  the Lane I'rrhc I'larr 

vary froat the la)our In  rhc Vllligc hlastcr I'lan. I h c  d r ~ \ ~  

Vchiclr ~cc-ss ti1 all lot3 \hall hc limircd according 

r t ~  frc~nragc r y p  c~rr the rppl~cnblc Rrrilding and 

[kvclup~ncnr Rrgdaring Plrn 

Dr~\r-rhr~,t~gir  facil~ricc may h. p r ~ n i r t c d  onlv ahrlc 
, lllgrcr\ and ~-g~crr i s  p~ov id~x i  from r kc11ncl3r) ~II 

Acccrb SIILXI as idcnlificd i n  ~ h c  hln\tc~ l'iarr 

krvicc Yatcis 

1 IIIIUIII<II III.JII~)II- Jrc .II~~<IIIL~ ti\ r r~ f f l c  m ~ d ~ c - .  

\ l :Rvlc.~. Y.\I~I>s 
I ~ n t a r .  ofrhc bui!clinP i n  the 1.dnc k r k c  P l ~ n  do nor have a 

Kcsid~rrsc G Srandanls and Local Uttsir~c.\\ I ) i \ r t ia 

Sr.~ndrrdl rrgutrc wrvicc yards to Ix I(~tarccl .it rlrc 

rr-41 ol'cllc I i~~i ldi l tgs a ~ ~ d  s p c . 1 1 ~  c~zc dud r l ~ ~ ~ c r i r l  

rcflll8rcIrIcIrri 

.lhc litnirnti~rn on \cl~icle rccecb ro buildings for b r ~ r l ~  

I'rin13ry .IIIL~ k ~ o ~ t d a r y  Frr~nragcs ,lralI not +ply I~I 

~ l r i \ c  ac\lcr rrrd r c c c ~  p ~ i n r s  to any rrmcrurcd prrktng. 

a \  ~cncrallv dct~iaed ia  the Illu\rrarivc hhstcr I'lan 

l i~  rllow Tor ctficicur \cb~ct~lar rra\cl rnd  convenicnr accesr 

ro parking \rirli in rhc I'lrn. so xrvicc areas will he locard i n  

rcconlrncc w i r l ~  tllc I'arking. Acre\$ a n d l b f i c  Plrn i n  kcricln 

I j o f  chi, I'CIL> Apylicarion. 

I>r~.r nclt rcquirr wrr.iii. yarclc to Ix at thc r c ~ r  rnci 

dictate\ r l ~ r t  rrvicc yards t)i. srccncd from virw (hcc 

I>csign Srartdarcl\) 

hlrlrrlals I i ~ l ~ l a d c  111c 11.c crf p311rtcd brick 

rear yard rnd  will lravc rlrccrr on 211 side*. Accordingly, wrvicc 

arras \IlrII IIC Ilocareii i n  accorclance ~ i t h  rhc Parking. ACCUII 

and Tr.~ffic I'lrn and ~ r c e n c d  it1 acccrrdancc will1 [hi. Dcsign 

Srrr~tlads 
All I ~ r r ~ l d i n g ~  shall lrr\-c one primary n~rcclial tovcr ingr~ 

lea\t 70"o n f  building facade\ 

*lbc prirn.rry n1rrcri31 fi~t Rrsidetrtisl nuifdings rnay 

co~~\ i \ r  c~FIcn than 7OU.o co\cmty o f  rhc I~ui lding hc :~do 

A l l ~ ~ r v t  for thr. 11.w o f  paillred brick 

Acldit iolial tlota: 

I. Urilitics. 'Ihc Ruilding Typology rcquircnic~~rs do nor apply wlicrc t~rility 

casements and drainagelfloodway c~set~lrrrrs prohibit tlrc ;ibiliry to 

conIi~rm. 

7;, brcak up  the \c.Jc c~f this largcl (111) 10 4-\rory) hl~i lding 

r v p .  
1;' provillc grc;ttcr \,lric.tv rvitl~ntu rolnprolnlaltl): 11s ~culrct ic 

01 ~~~IIIIIIAIII 11r(111k Vtlla~c. 

Stdcwalk 

Wid111 

2. Ray Rrlilding. To the exrenr rlrc Ray Bitikiing tloes ttor conlply wirll rhc 

Vill;tge Ch7erl;ly Sr;~ndards, the Local Brtsitless Disrricl reqrrircmrt~ts or rhc 

Design Standarcis in any respect, n o  alterltions to the Kay Bl~iltling shall 

be reqitired and rhc Rly Building rniy rctlrairr 3s ct~rrt.ntly cousrructcd as 

;I legal aon-conlbrminp strrtcture. Any fitture mi~tcrill exterior alteratiolts 

or reno\-itions to the Ray Building shall conlor111 to the appropriate 

Architectural Style set forth in the Pattern Book. 

3. Design Srat~dartis. 'Ihc Ocsigl~ Sralidards are Irereby iricorporarcd hereill 

by rcfcrcncc and any pmvisiotis tlicrcof nor cxprcssly identified above that 

devi~rr fro111 the Village Ovcrliy St;~ndards, the Residence C Standards 

or rhe Local Busincss District regitlatioas shall be prmlissible. To [he 
extent any provisions of  thc Dctign Standards are inconsisrent with thc 

yrovisiotrs of  t l l r  Village. Overlay Standnnls, rlle Residence C Standtrds 

or the Local Busi~~ess District reguhtioas, rlle Design Stalldartis sllall 

control. 

Sihwrlkr cm primary \trccrc >lid1 he 8-1 2' wide 

4. I'arking Design. The rcq~riretrie~~ts r,-l;ited to I'arking Design shall not 

apply. as parking ;aid lccess will be inlplentcnted in accordance with 

rtle Parking, Access :lnd 'Ii.~lIic 1'1311 inclttded in Secrion 13 of  this PUD 
App1ic;itiotr. 

'The sidewalk on tlte sccricm o f  Lane Rrke Road nocrh o f  

I'.~rk 1.anc Chert Sourh >hall h r  (i' mir~irrrurn 

Il~i\ ridcrv;~lk will nc~r supp~rr rcrail rrrtfic and will wrvc rs .I 
trrtrriric~n 111 rcsidenr~al area, norrh o f  Lanc hrkc. 



D R I V E  1 - t l R O U G I - 1  F A C I L I T I E S  
Drivc rl~rough Facilirics may hr dcmigncd and ronrrrucrcd as an>ceitics .rm 

first ilaor rerail or coeitncnirl ryrcc i n  rhc folluwii~p, iowciona 

~ l d  Access Plan: (i\ within oarrrl I ,, . I r ,I j "., I h i n oan d 8. and (iii) w i h h  
U P "  . . .  ' -  8- 

!kk pmvidcd howcvcr. that rurh drivc rhraugh facilities m y  only rcnicc 
nhc hlllo~ving urn Jg&k& mhrmd in . <  - . 

brilbmkrlfinandnl insrirtsionr, UiJ pharmacies (inclnmding 
phann~cirs aedlluy to anorher priuury are), hd drydry-cl-en. h) colIrc 
shops and M specialty food rclaeed ccaxnup&s so& ihtcludcd within the bn- 
food rcrrauranr uregoty ~ u r h  a b.*cric~ d r l i ~ i t t ~ a r t u  and $tor= oK~ l ing  the 
rde oficc cream. yogurt a d l o r  rmaorhicr. rmc-food rcrraumnt u m  may nor 
t~t i l i rc drivc rhmugln lkcilitier. 

Tnc size and dcsign ofhuildi~l&r and sromfro~~rs may vary fmm thc s i m  and 
desig'u s h w n  in rlxc l l l t~rtrrr ivr h.lu#rr Plrn m d  in rhe Parking, r\rccu ;nncl 
Trdffi~ Nan ro acconanodarc ihc inclusion o f  or rlrrngcr to drive-rlnraugh 
faciliries zr pcrmirrcd by rhac Dnign Svandards. 

D E S I G N  R E V I E W  
I n  connmion with rhc prcpar~rion o f  sclnezna~ic design documents for m y  
baildimg(s), rhc Pmjco Owner &dl lub tn i~  to rhe zoning officer bs ddnml  
in the Ciry Cad.) rchcmaric drrign drawings (sire plan, floor plans and 
elcmtions of the bui lding ibceitl) ('l'rclin>inary Planr"1 far review and 

conlnlcllr relzive to co~npliullcc wirh rhe Dexign Srmdxds. The z.oning 
alliccrrbdl havcrherigltt rom~~su l r  with rhc Design Commirte~ibrguidancc 
on whcrher lltc Prclimin~ry Plrur comply with the Duign Sraltdsh. up018 

wrirtm rcqttcrr o f  rhe zonic~g oflice6 the I'rojccr Owner rhall present ihc 
Prcliminrry Plans ro the Design Conlmitrcc ar a rcgulsrly scheduled inrrring 
o f  rhe Design Cornrnirrer ;and cunpcrarc wirlr m y  rabscqc~cst inquiries o f  
rhc Dcrign Coeasirrec, Thr zosing officer will norify rhc Proircr Owucr i n  
writing within 30 days ofx l~c larx to o u a r u f  the rubnlirral d r h c  Pmliminary 
Plans or rhe Pmjecr Owncri ymscnntion to the Doign Committee ifsaid 
I'mliminar). P lau  do not m z ~ ~ p l y  with ihc Deign Srandd ,  which wrirccn 
notice shrill i~)clude r dercriptio~~ o f  why the Pml imi~r~ty  Plans are mot i n  
mn~pliancc with chr Design Standards. 

Prior to mrnntclrcing msr&ruomoe on, any bt!ildiatg withit# lane I Lse .  rhc 
I'rojuo Owller rh;dl apply fur n building pernlir in accordat~cc wirh rhc 
requircmcnrr o f  Section 107-40 ihroagll Secrion 107-46 oirhe Ciry Code. 
'~,CZO,,~,,~ ~ f l i - ~  ~h.11 tlrvc ,I.: c u  ~ i t h  I ~ C  Conrtrnictce 
w dcrmm~ittc if rhr final plan* ILr any buildiug cutni>ly r i c h  thc l>csign 

l l ~ c  provisions o f  rhe for%oing rwn (2 )  pilmgntphr shall he r c f e d  ro hercin 
nr rhr "Dcsien Revinv Praccrr'). 

D E S I G N  R E V I E W  - S I C N . 4 C E  AN11 
A W N I N G S  
Thc Pmiecr Ovllcr rhdl subnlit a find sipnrg plat (bas4 upon thc 
Signrgc Pian indudcd in Secrinn 12 ofrhir I'UD APpliurion) to rhc Drsign 
Cornmitrrr far rrview and aypruwl ar r M~srrr Sign Plan i n  accontsnrc 
with ihc quirernena o f  Section 121, Division 3, o f  rlre City Code nd 
each businerr within Lane I'arkc, prior ro crcaing anyrignsor awningr rhdl 
rubtnir m application tbr a sign permit i n  rccordrnce wirh rhr rqa i rnnmo 
ofSeoion 121. Divbion 2, o f th r  City Code. 



TRAFFIC AND ACCESS 

The plan oimffific.md a c c a r  for Lam Parkc shall be rs rnomparric~~l,~rlyscr Innh 
lherein it* rhir Sarion 13 (the "-), illro").llla rwfficand ;~ccess 

itnlrmvemenrs cnnsrructcd in connection wid, rile 1,nc Park I'lan shall bc in 
rccanl.mcr with $~rTwff ic and A c c a  Plan- 

AKcdau. 

The Tuffie m d  ha Plan h a  been prepad in rcmdancc with the 
mommendnior~aiaTmfficimp~crSrudyp~~~ by Skipper Conadring, IN, 
a leading regional rrafficcon~ulrsm.acopy ofwhich har ban submiedwirtt h i s  
PUD A ~ I i o t i o n  u.&xc&d (rhc "-7. 

nr T~affic lmym Ludy rrmnvnc~~d. ~ l u t  cl~e Followvi#lg innpmws~en,s h 
cunrrmad ro h e r  mi- rhc r& d e w &  mtdring fmm the usa =ad 
imp-mrnn ra hc indudcd withim h e  Pa& (cuUmidy. rile '2ia& 
l u " m w d ' k  

. Wxden h e  Park Road ro a d ~ m  lur cms at ion  i i m  the inrenmian 
o lG I r&  RoadlCulvcr Rord1U.S. Htvy 280 rar~plyt ibr rppnninlillcly440 
ice! northward (indudins nun bay swrase, I- bay caper, a d  rrd~itio~l 

vrpcr). 
Wtdening olCulwr Road ro a r h m  lnr cros sh.tba. 

h r r i p i r~gMonmd!o  Road tn pmvidea lch rum lane into rhc rircaccm. 
Madi l jhg rhr traffic rignal rr rhe inrenauion 01 Clhaba RoadLane I** 
RoxllCulwr hd1U.S. 280 Ramps to pmvidc a pmrectd-petn,iuive ieh 
turn nrmv b r  r d c  turning lcii from rhe U.S. 280 nmp sonltlmlnund onto 
Ch.ch.ba Road and h e  h r k  R o d  

MINDFUL OF THE PAST, LOOKING TO THE FUTURE 97 



A P P E N D I X  G :  A L T E R A T E  DRIVE T H R O U G H  A N D  A C C E S S  P L A N  



QRI'fF-THR""r-H Q U E U E  TRPEFIC S T U D Y  

Lane Parke PUD 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 

Prepared for: 

Evson, Inc. 
2621 Lane Park Road 

Mountain Brook, Alabama 35223 

Prepared by: 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. 
3644 Vann Road, Suite 100 

Birmingham, Alabama 35235 

June 10,2019 



Lane Parke PUD Drive-Through Analysis Mountain Brook, Alabama 

This report documents a traffic analysis to support a change in PUD use for the Lane Parke PUD in 
Mountain Brook, Alabama, in order to allow construction of two uses with drive-through windows. One 
shop is proposed to be a Coffee Shop, and the other is proposed t o  be a fast-casual restaurant (not fast 
food). The proposed shop locations within the PUD and orientation of the drive-through lane is shown in 
Figure 1. 

Figure 1. Drive-Through Locations 

Drive-Throuerh Storage 

The drive-through lane for the Coffee Shop has the capacity to store approximately nine (9) vehicles 
beginning at the window before the queue begins to block traffic flow on Jemsion Lane. The drive-through 
lane for the Fast-Casual Restaurant has the ability to store two (2) vehicles beginning at the window. 
Another five (5) vehicles can be stored in the parking area along the rear of shops Dl, D2, and D3 before 
the queue begins t o  block traffic flow on Culver Road. 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 1 



Lane Parke PUD Drive-Through Analysis Mountain Brook, Alabama 

Existina Queue LenpSh Studies 

Existing studies for drive-through queues for Coffee Shops are limited to one report containing maximum 
queue lengths for six Coffee Shops located in Minnesota and Kansas. The data in the report i s  limited to 
reporting the maximum observed queue during a 24-hour period. A graphical depiction of the data is 
shown below. 

Msxlrmm Queue Length (Vehkler) 

Figure 3.3.2 - Drive-Through Coffee Shop Maxlmum Queue Frequency - MN + KS Data 

Source: Drive-Through Queue Generation, Mike Spack, P.E., et al 

The data collected in Minnesota and Kansas can be statistically analyzed to yield the following: 

Average Maximum Queue - 10.2 vehicles 
85" Percentile Queue - 13 vehicles 
Maximum Queue - 16 vehicle 

No existingstudiesfor drive-through queuesfor Fast-Casual Restaurants were located in literature search. 

New Queue Length Data Collection 

Existing queue length studies available were determined to be insufficient for the purposes of this report. 
In order to provide a complete picture of the queues, not only the length of the maximum queues must 
be determined, but also the duration (in minutes) of any queues which exceed the storage available needs 
to be known in order to make sound decisions regarding the proposal. Therefore, in order to provide a 
complete picture of queue lengths, Skipper Consulting, Inc. undertook new research to determine queue 
lengths for drive-throughs for Coffee Shops and Fast-Casual Restaurants. The sites selected for detailed 
data collection were: 

Coffeeshops 
o Starbucks on U.S. Highway 11 in Trussville 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 2 



Lane Parke PUD Drive-Through Analysis Mountain Brook, Alabama 

o Starbucks on Montclair Road in Birmingham 
Fast-Casual Restaurant 

o Panera Bread on U.S. Highway 11 in Trussville. 

Data collection was performed by observing the queues during the morning, midday, and afternoon peak 
periods, with the queue data collected minute-by-minute. The results of the queue length data collection 
are depicted in the followinggraphs. 

COFFEE SHOP QUEUES 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. 



Lane Parke PUD Drive-Through Analysis Mountain Brook, Alabama 

Coffee Shop Queue Analysls 
Weekday 

4:25 p.m. to 5:30 p.m. 

FAST-CASUAL RESTAURANT QUEUES 

Fast-Casual Restaurant Queue Analysis 
Weekday 

6:45 a.m. to 8:05 a.m. 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. 



Lane Parke PUD Drive-Through Analysis Mountain Brook, Alabama 

Fast-Casual Restaurant Queue Anawk 
Weekday 

I135 a.m, ta 190 p.m. 

Fast-Casual Restaurant Queue Unalysls 
Weekday 

438 p.m. Fo 5?30 p,m 

Analvsis of Queue Leneths 

Coffee Shoo 

The longest queues (both in length and duration) for the Coffee Shop is during the morning peak period. 
Based on the data collected, it is estimated that the queue for the proposed Coffee Shop will exceed the 
available storage of nine (9) vehiclesfor six (6) minutes during the morning peak period. Morespecifically, 

The queue will exceed storage by one vehicle for three (3) minutes 
The queue will exceed storage by two vehicles for one (1) minute 
The queue will exceed storage by three vehicles for one (1) minute 
The queue will exceed storage by four vehicles for one (1) minute 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. 



Lane Parke PUD Drive-Through Analysis Mountain Brook, Alabama 

During the midday peak period, i t  is projected that the queue will never exceed the storage. And during 
the afternoon peak period, i t  is projected that the queue will exceed the storage for three (3) minutes, 
with the storage exceeded by one (1) vehicle during those three (3) minutes. 

Or, in other words, there is would be projected to be minor disruption to traffic flow on Jemison Lane for 
six (6) minutes each weekday, with the possibility of both directions of traffic flow being disrupted for up 
to three (3) minutes each weekday. 

Fast-Casual Restaurant 

The queue length data collected for the Fast-Casual Restaurant shows that the primary storage of two (2) 
vehicles is projected to be frequently exceeded during the time periods analyzed. However, the projected 
queue lengths never exceed the available storage including the parking areas behind shops Dl, D2, and 
03. Or, in other words, it is projected that the drive-through for the Fast-Casual Restaurant would never 
impact traffic flow on Culver Road. 

Skipper Consulting, Inc. Page 6 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

PROPOSED ZONING NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook to be held on Monday, 
August 12, 2019, at 7:00 p.m., in the Council Chamber of the Mountain Brook City Hall located at 56 Church Street, 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213, the City Council will hold a public hearing to consider proposed amendments to the 
Lane Parke PUD, as approved upon the adoption of Ordinance 187 1 dated May 2 1,20 12. 

Proposed PUD changes (with respect to the number of drive-thrus and their locations) are available for review during 
regular business hours at City Hall or by going to: www.mtnbrook.org - Calendar - At~gnst 12, 1'019 - City Council - 
Supporting Doctmtents - Lane Parke PUD Amendment. 

ORDINANCE NO. 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LANE PARKE PUD 

BE IT ORDAlNED by the City Council of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as follows: 

1. Development Standards. The Master Development Plan and the materials submitted by the applicant, as 
required by Section 129-265 of the Mountain Brook City Code, as approved upon the adoption of Ordinance 1871 
dated May 2 1,20 1 2 are hereby amended to include the changes specified as attached hereto. 

2. Description of Affected Pro~crtv. The property that is the subject of the rezoning approved by this ordinance is 
described ns follows: 

A parcel of lnnd being situated in the Northeast quarter of thc Northwest quarter and the Southeast quarter 
of the Northwest quarter of Section 8, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, more p~rticularly described as 
fol1ows: 

Begin at the Southwest Comer of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 8, Township 
18 South, Range 2 West; being the Point of Beginning; thence run Northerly along the West line of said 
Quarter - Quarter a distance of 665.12 feet; thence right 9 lo-08'44" a distance of 1325.1 1 feet; thence 
right 88"-58'-55" a distance of 74.22 fect; thence right 37"-49'-05" a distance of 736.41 feet; thence right 
52"-48-30'' a distance of 62.37 feet; thence right 00"-14'-22" a distancc of 179.92 feet; thence left 90"-58'- 
32" a distance of 355.39 feet; thence right 88"-43'-29" a distance of 24.53 feet; thence left 87'-29'-35" a 
distance of 139.13 feet; thence right 89O-27'49" a distance of  14.61 fect; thence left 1 17'-30'-00" a 
distance of 175.92 feet; thence right 84O-32'-17" a distance of 46.85 feet; thence tangent to a curve to the 
lefi having a radius of 1243.16 feet and a central angle of 9"-20'45" aIong the curve an arc distance of 
202.55 feet; thence right 62O-49'052" from the tangent of said curve a distance of 329.33 fcct; thence 
tangent to a curve to the left having a central angle of 1 8"-00'-50" and a radius of 66.12 feet an arc 
distance of 20.79 feet; thence left 2°-03'-01" to the tangent of a curve to the left having a central angle of 
34"-34'-36" and a radius of 60.77 feet, an arc distance of 36.67 feet; thence continue fiom the tangent of 
said curve a distance of 45.64 feet; thence right 90"-00'-00" (t distance of 1 19.49 feet; thence right 33"- 
25'-36" a distance of 245.1 1 feet; thence right 0"-00'142" a distance of 377.82 feet to the Point of 
Beginning. 

Said Parcel contains 27.59 acres more or less. 

3. Repealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain 
Bmk,  Alabama that are inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby expressly repealed. 



4. Severabilitv. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstih~tional or invalid for any 
reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the remainder of this ordinance, which shall 
continue in f i l l  force and effect notwithstanding such holdin&. 

5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption and publication as provided 
by law. 

At the aforesaid time and place, all interested parties will be heard in relation to the changes proposed by said 
ordinance. 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Tammy Reid, Administrative Analyst for the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, do hcrcby ccrti@ that 'I have caused 
notice of the proposed amendment to the zoning ordinance and of public meeting thereupon set forth above to be 
published and provided in the manner specified by Article XXV of the Mountain Brook City Code. I m e r  certify that I 
have posted said notice in four conspicuous places within the City of Mountain Brook, in the manner and within the time 
pemitted by law, said places being: 

Mountain Brook City Hall, 56 Church Street 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road 
Cahaba River WaUq 3503 Overton Road 
Overton Park, 3020 Ovcrton Road 


	2019-Aug-12 Agenda
	1 Jamie Gregory
	2  Minutes
	3-4 VDR appointments
	5 Poll workers
	6  Cove Drive traffic island
	7  Crestline water line
	8  Sunday alcohol sales
	9  Lane Parke PUD

